
If the Port Authority makes additional requests for snow removal, such as clearing walkways in the parking
lots and assisting patrons, particularly handicapped parkers to access their vehicles if blocked in, they will
provide snow brushes, shovels, hand salt spreaders and snow blowers.

the following will be discussed and arranged:

Picking up and dropping off employees at key public transportation points in the vicinity of th4
airport. Employees will be informed to contact the Supervisor-In-Charge at EWR: (973) 718-
7270 or (973) 961-6421, JFK: (347) 2')8-3231 or (718) 244-4168, LGA: (347) 468-3928 or (7181
533-3850 should they need transportation.
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Use existing staff to cover main posts. Each lot should have adequate coverage to accommodate
the traffic without delays and inconvenience to patrons. Hours worked will be billed accordingly
and should not sustain liquidated damages for deficiencies.

In the event of "State of r g - ABM will provide  • • • odat i and meals as
needed for employees working double shifts and employees holding over throughout the course
of the event. All efforts will be made to have a list of employees who will be covering key posts
during the length of the storm.

Snowi L Removal Operation?



ALABAMA AL

ALASKA

ARIZONA AZ
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CALIFORNIA CA
COLORADO CO
CONNECTICUT CT
DELAWARE DE
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA DC
FLORIDA FL
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ODE ISLAND RI
SOUTH CAROLINA SC
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TEXAS TX
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VIRGINIA VA
WASHINGTON WA
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WISCONSIN WI
WYOMING WY

roc-.` - y` r	 ^	 r^ _	 r	 I U€ UIC PIUVIIILXN MIU LZ^IIILUI1US III k-WIdUd.

Alberta AB
British Columbia BC
Manitoba MB
New Brunswick NB
Newfoundland	 Labrador NL
Northwest Territories NT
Nova Scotia NS

Nunavut NU
Ontario ON
Prince Edward Island PE
Quebec QC

Saskatchewan SK
Yukon YT
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Employees failing to comply with the airport customer service standards will be subjected to progressive
discipline leading up to and including termination of employment.

All airport employees are required to be courteous and helpful at all times with every customer and other
employees, and keep in mind "... people may not remember exactly what you did or what you said ... but they
will always remember how you made them feel." All employees will meet or exceed the following standards:

Security and Public Safety
Safety and security is an important airport responsibility for all employees. This can be more easily
accomplished if you remain aware of your surroundings and follow these rules;

Airport Community is P 	 's Eyes and Ears
• EIS - Observe the situation and circumstances.
• LISTEN - To statements made by subjects.
• T	 - Are the totality of the facts consistent with normal/ legal operations.
• ACT - Call the PAPD and report all the facts.
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All employees are expected to be on the lookout for any suspicious and/or criminal activity in the parking

lots. Routine checks should be conducted in each lot with an emphasis on the garage. Supervisors, please

ensure that your vehicle's beacon light is on while touring any lot.

Unattended Items

If you come upon any unattended luggage, baggage, etc., do not attempt to recover the item. Contact your

immediate supervisor to notify the PAPD at EWR: (973) 961-6230, JFK: (718) 244-4335 or LGA: (718) 533-

3911.  There are also call boxes located throughout the lots that will dial the police directly or you may dial

*21 from and airport pay phone.

aft emf^hj , , , -^ ^ halk

1.4.1 Be well informed, capable of providing directions and know where and how to obtain requested

information or services for customers.

1.4.2 Convey accurate information using clear and understandable terms.

1.4.4 Obtain the facts when encountering a dissatisfied customer, state any applicable policy clearly and

politely; and be able to offer a solution or an adequate alternative to the customer. If unable to satisfy

the customer or resolve the issue, direct the customer to immediate supervisor.

1.4.4 Know where and how to obtain assistance to resolve customers' questions or problems if language

I tet7^ .4 ^ 	^',

Mystery shops are conducted monthly both by the Port Authority and ABM Parking Services . All employees
are subject to be mystery shopped. A passing mystery shop will require the employee to fol low all of the
written customer service standards set forth by the Port Authority and ABM Parking Services.

An employee will receive a monetary incentive for a passed mystery shop(s). A failed mystery shop will

result in progressive discipline up to and including termination. The most frequently missed standards, yet the

most important include; greeting each customer in a pleasant manner, making eye contact, and closing the

transaction.
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Exa Wiles ®f Failed PA Mvster v Shops

13.0.0 General Comments Employee Name: XXXXX	 Date: XXXXX	 Time: XXXX
Weather:	 Overcast	 Occupancy:	 Steady
The customer parked in Aisle 602.

Standards of Employee 1.1.1 Greet all customers in a friendly XXXXX did not offer a greeting to the customer and initiated the
Attitude, Appearance and professional manner. conversation stating "Three Dollars".
and Knowledge

1.1.3 Project a pleasant,	 friendly,	 and XXXXX behavior was not very friendly.
attentive demeanor and maintain
proper posture at all times.

1.1.7 Use	 a	 proper	 and	 courteous XXXXX vocabulary did not contain courteous words.
vocabulary and tone of voice with
customers.	 For example, use word
such as "please", "yes", "hello" and
"thank-you".

1.1.8 Maintain appropriate eye contact XXXXX tone of voice was not very pleasant.
and a pleasant tone of voice while
conversing	 with	 customers	 and
fellow employees.

I.ct	 I crmioA k	 I	 or t	 I  -	 I	 ,,(	 I ickct	 I	 tit ouno !

13.0.0 General Comments Employee Name: XXXXX Date: XXXX	 Time: XXXX
Feather:	 Sunny	 Occupancy:	 Steady

Standards of Employee Standards of Employee Attitude, The customer approached the exit booth at 15:25 p.m. and reported
Attitude,	 Appearance Appearance	 and	 Knowledge that his parking ticket was lost. XXXXX asked for the vehicle's
and Knowledge General Comments registration and the driver's license; however, he did not explain to

the customer about the procedure, or how much time would it take
to complete the process. He was approached by other uniformed
personnel who assisted in expediting the process as other vehicles
were lining up in that lane. The name badge of the uniformed
personnel was not visibly displayed. The overall procedure took 25
minutes and the customer was thanked at departure. It was noted
that none of the associates had greeted the customer at arrival.

1.1.1 Greet all customers in a friendly XXXXX did not greet the customer.
and professional manner.

1.1.4 Remain calm when encountering XXXXX did no show empathy with the customer's problem.
an upset customer, try to calm the
customer,	 listen	 carefully	 and
show empathy with the customer's
problem.

1.1.7 Use	 a	 proper	 and	 courteous XXXXX vocabulary did not contain courteous words.
vocabulary and tone of voice with
customers. For example, use word
such	 as	 "please",	 "yes",	 "hello"
and "thank-you".



r	 ,.	 ....r

Exaera lec aaf >P^scetl >P 4 Mvstery Shoes

13.0.0 General Comments Employee Name: XXXXX Oate: XXXXX 	 Time: XXXX
Feather: Overcast	 Occupancy: Slow

Standards of Employee Standards of Employee Attitude, XXXXX greeted the customer upon arrival. She wished a
Attitude,	 Appearance Appearance	 and	 Knowledge pleasant day to the guest as she found out that there was no
and Knowledge General Comments charge for parking due to the short stay in the parking lot.

Provided accurate and adequate directions to the customer and
thanked him prior to the departure. The associate maintained
courteous and professional demeanor throughout the encounter
and met the employee service standard with 100% compliance.

i
13.U.0 General Comments Employee name: XXXX	 Date: XXXX	 Time: XXXX

Feather: Clear	 Occupancy: Slow

Standards	 of 13.3.4 Properly uniformed and identifiable A call was placed from the emergency telephone at 20:55 near
Functionality personnel shall be readily available aisle	 103 to assist the traveler in locating the car. 	 XXXX

to	 assist	 customers	 during answered on the second ring, asked the caller the location and
designated travel periods	 and to stated that she would send assistance. 	 At 21:05 XXXX arrived
respond to emergency situations. and asked the traveler what was needed. XXXX indicated for the

traveler to get in the van and he would assist in locating the car.
He asked the make and model and then asked for the keys to the
car. He began to circle the lot and pressed the panic button on the
set of keys. The car was located within five minutes. XXXX was
pleasant throughout the encounter and wished the traveler a good
night.

Standards of Employee Standards of Employee Attitude, XXXX offered a greeting as the traveler placed the ticket in the
Attitude,	 Appearance Appearance	 and	 Knowledge machine.	 She smiled and indicated the price. When the traveler
and Knowledge General Comments handed XXXX a business pass, she offered a pen and asked the

traveler to please sign the pass. 	 XXXX quickly processed the
pass and wished the traveler a good night. 	 The employee
standards were met with 100% compliance.

The Port Authority .	 • ashopping and inspection surveys iii
continual a 	 addition , •	 of May and June the Port Autho rity performs annual customer
service surveys and facility ins pections of	 d LaGuardia Airports.

The goal of the Customer Care Deward & recognition Program is to publicly recognize outstanding
employees and acknowledge their accomplishments with two award levels: the first award is for Consistency
while providing service to our customers; the second award is for going above and Beyond while providing
service to our customers.

Eligibility
Consistency Award - any non-PA airport employee who has direct contact with airport customers.
Above Beyond Award — any non-PA airport employee.



Above and Beyond Award Program
This program is for all any airport employees that go "above and beyond" in their job regardless of having
direct customer contact. This can range from saving someone's life to stopping and changing a tire for a
customer.

It is the role of each contractor to select one (1) winner for Employee of the Quarter and submit the attached
Nomination Form for the selected employee. The winner will receive a commendation letter, have his/her
photo taken, and be featured in Airport Press,

If you have any questions, concerns and/or suggestions to enhance this program, please contact your Can-Site
Customer Service Manager.

Note: The Customer Care Rewards Program is sponsored by the Port Authority. ABMParking,Services has
ongoing "In-House Incentive and Events" programs that are separate and apart from the Customer Care
Rewards Program. For more information on our in-house programs, please see your ®n-,Site Customer
Service Manager.
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From the North:
From 1-87 NY Thruway: South on Thruway-Major Deegan Expressway (1-87) to Cross Bronx Expressway
(1-95); east on Cross Bronx to Van Wyck Expressway south (1-678) across the Bronx-Wbitestone Bridge to
Van Wyck Expressway (1-678) south which leads directly to the airport.

From 1-95 New England Thruway: New England Thruway (1-95) south to Bruckner Expressway; take exit
for Van Wyck Expressway south (1-678) across the Bronx-Whitestone Bridge to the Van Wyck Expressway
south (1-678) which leads directly to the airport.

From 1-84/1-684: South on 1-684 to 1-287; west on 1-287 to NY Thruway-Major Deegan Expressway (1-87)
to Cross Bronx Expressway (1-95); east Cross Bronx to Van Wyck Expressway south (1-678) across the
Bronx-Whitestone Bridge to the Van Wyck Expressway (1-678) which leads directly to the airport.

From the East:
West on Long Island Expressway (1-495) to Van Wyck Expressway (1-678) south; take Van Wyck south
directly to the airport.

From the South:
North on NJ Turnpike to Exit 13; east across Goethals Bridge to Staten Island Expressway (1-278); cross
Verrazano Bridge; follow Gowanus Expressway north to Prospect Expressway south to 10th Avenue; follow
10th Avenue to McDonald Avenue south; turn left on Caton Avenue to Linden Boulevard (NY 27); take
Linden Boulevard to Nassau Expressway directly to the airport.

From the West:
Via 1-78: East on 1-78 to NJ Turnpike south to Exit 13; cross Goethals Bridge to Staten Island Expressway (I-
278) to Verrazano Bridge; just past the bridge, exit to Ft. Hamilton Parkway to Linden Boulevard (NY 27);
take Linden Boulevard to Nassau Expressway directly to the airport.

To Manhattan from JFK: Van Wyck (1-678) North to Long Island Expressway (1-495) West.

To Airports:
LaGuardia Airport: North on Van Wyck Expressway (1-678); East on Grand Central Parkway;

Newark Liberty International Airport: Belt Parkway West to Verrazano Bridge; continue on Staten Islani
Expressway (1-278) west to Goethals Bridge; across bridge, take NJ Turnpike north toExit 1 3)A or Exit 14;
follow signs to airport.

ernetk	 I Ai	 Car Re	 I I
Avis (7 18) 244-5400 or (00) 230 4898
Budget (718) 656-1890 or (800) 527-0700
Dollar (866) 434-2226
Hertz (718) 656-7600 or (800) 654-3131
National (718) 632-8300 or (800) 227-7368
Enterprise (718) 659-1200 or (800) 736-8227
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From the North:
From I-87 NY 'Thruway: South on Thruway-Major Deegan Expressway (I-87) to Robert F. Kennedy
(Triborough) Bridge to Queens; east on Astoria Boulevard to 94 th Street; left onto 94th north directly to the
airport.

From  95 New England	 •(1-95) Southa Bruckner Expressway;
for Van Wyck Expressway (1-678) south across the Bronx-Whitestone Bridge to exit for Northern Boulevard
(west); west on o,	 Boulevard to Ast•ria Boulevard to 9	 • • 94tb Street (north) directly
• the airport.

From 1-84/1-684: South on 68 •	 on	 r  to	 (1-87); •	 on	 wa	 tor: Deegan
Expressway $ to ob	 •	 rir•au	 Bridge to Q -	 on Astoria Boulevard •.94
street; left onto it (north)directly to the !•

From the East:
West on Long Island Expressway (I-495) to Brooklyn Queens Expressway (BQE I-278); take Brooklyn
Queens Expressway (BQE I-278) north to Exit 38/Northern Boulevard; take Northern Boulevard east to 94th
Street; turn left onto 94 th Street north directly to the airport.

From the South:
North on the NJ Turnpike to Exit 13; east across the Goethals Bridge to Staten Island Expressway (I-278);
cross Verrazano Bridge; Gowanus Expressway north to Brooklyn Queens Expressway (BQE I-278), north to
Exit 38/Northern Boulevard; take Northern Boulevard east to 94 th Street directly to the airport.

From the West:	 I

Via I®78: East on I-78 to NJ Turnpike south to Exit 13; cross Goethals Bridge to Staten Island Expressway Q-
278); cross Verrazano Bridge Clowanus Expressway north to Brooklyn Queens Expressway (BQE 1-278);
north to Exit 3 8/Northern Boulevard; take Northern Boulevard east to 94 th Street directly to the airport.

4a MUST

To  Airports:
John F. Kennedy International Airport: West on Grand Central Parkway to Van Wyck Expressway (1-678)
south; take Van Wyck south directly to the airport.

Newark Liberty International Airport: West on Grand Central Parkway to Long Island Expressway (I-
Long	 r Expressway (1-495) to Brooklyn Queens Expressway Q	 +); south

Brooklyn Queens Expressway (BQE 1-278) to Verrazano Bridge; continue on Brooklyn Queens Expressway
(BQE	 across bridge, take NJ Turnpike tofollow
signs to airport.
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Courtyard LaGuardia
Phone: 718-446-4800

Fax: 718-446-5733

.,,zuart—a

Crowne Plaza
104-04 Ditmars Boulevard
East Elmhurst, NY 11369

(718) 457-6300

(800) 692-5429

Fax: (718) 899-9768

Wyndham Garden Hotel - LaGuardia
100-15 Ditmars Boulevard
East Elmhurst, NY 11369

(718) 426-1500

Wingate Inn & Suites at LaGuardia Airport
137-07 Northern Boulevard

Flushing, NY 11354
(718) 445-3300

(718) 445-4 101 Sales

Garden Hotel LGA
136-36 39th Avenue
Flushing, NY 11354

(718) 426-1500

-dam IMI	 i

PA-PD (718) 533-3900

Emergency (718) 533-4333

General Information (718) 533-3400

Tow Truck Service (718) 5333-3993

Lost & Found (718) 533-3988

Human Resources (718) 468-3940
ABM Parking Services SIC	 (347) 468-3928
ABM Parking Services Ln 1	 (347) 468-3929
ABM Parking Services Ln2	 (347) 468-3930
ABM Parking Services (718) 533-3850

Employee Sales (718) 533-3413

Customer Service (347) 468-3936



Peeve sub."	 47
4 7 7-:^ 7-1—

IlJ "w
AV

,Oil

Ral A'

paff"Ig
 ,

Lot

Lot,,,

Te	 Thal
Parking

P4
AirTrain

P3
Nily Varking

station
Ailyrain

Dai'Ly Parking Station
Courtesy vehidvs Wily Parkin
for

Rental Cdr% P1
P2Ams AM rain

Herb AirTtain	 Station

nutxwi Station
	

Daily Parking
Rental Cars

NEWARK LIBERTY INTERNATIONAL Dollar

AIRPORT TRAIN STATI ON
ExAtflunf, (Af!"fpcil

CotutI;iy UG'i1Xi,5
Connection with Ainvak

and NJ Transit
.................................................

Page 11



To EWR from the North:
From 1-87 NY Thruway: Leave Thruway at Exit 15; south on NJ 17 to US 46; east on US 46 to NJ Turnpike
south; take Turnpike Exit 14 or 13A; follow signs for Newark Liberty International Airport.

From 1-95 New England Thruway: NE Thruway south to 1-95-Cross Bronx Expressway; west to George
Washington Bridge; continue south • NJ Turnpike as above.

From 1-84/1-684: South on 1-684 to 1-287 to 1-87-NY Thruway south on Thruway-Major Deegan
Expressway; west to George Washington Bridge and south on NJ Turnpike as above.

To EWR from the East:
West on Long Island Expressway (1-495) to 1-278/BQE; south on BQE to Verrazano Bridge; continue on I-
278 west to Goethals Bridge; across bridge, take NJ Turnpike north to Exit 13A or Exit 14; follow signs to
airport,

To EWR from the South:
NJ Turnpike north to Exit 13A or 14. Follow signs to Newark Liberty International Airport.

To EWR from the West:
Via 1-78: East on 1-78 to Exit 57; follow signs for Newark Liberty International Airport.

Via 1-80/1-280: East on 1-80 to 1-280; take 1-280 east to NJ Turnpike; south on Turnpike to Exit 14 or 13A;
follow signs to Newark Liberty International Airport.

Via US Route 22: East on US 22 to merge with US 1&9 north following signs for Newark Liberty
International Airport

To Airports:
JFK Airport: NJ Turnpike South to the Goethals Bridge (Exit 13) through Staten Island (278 East) to the
Verrazano Bridge; stay in left lane for the Belt Parkway East. Exit at JFK Airport and follow signs to
terminal/ parking.

LaGuardia Airport: 1&9 North or 78 East to the Holland Tunnel. Exit #5 Canal Street to the Manhattan
Bridge. 278 East (BQE), follow signs to LGA.
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New Jersey Transit — www.njtransit.com
Amtrak — www.amtrak.com
Air Train Newark — www.airtrainnewark.com

All call rental companies are located at the P2 AirTrain station.
Avis (973) 961-4300 or (800) 230 4898
Budget (973) 961-2990 or (800) 527-0700
Dollar (973) 824-2002
Hertz (973) 621-2000 or (800) 654-3131
National (973) 622-1270
Enterprise (973) 733-2723 or (800) 325-8007
(A shuttle bus departs from the P2 air train station to an off airport site.)

All hotels pick-up and drop-off at Air Train Station P4. Hotel courtesy vehicles depart approximately every
1/2 hour from Lot P4. There are courtesy phones available for major hotels.

Newark Airport Marriott Hampton Inn Newark Airport
Newark International Airport 1128-38 Spring Street

Newark, NJ 07114 Elizabeth, NJ 07207
Toll Free: 800-882-1037 Tel:(908) 355-0500

Tel: (973) 623-0006 (800) HAMPTON (426-7866)
Fax: (973) 623-7618 Fax:(908) 355-4343

Courtyard Newark Marriott Best Western
600 Route I & 9 South Newark Airport West

Newark, NJ 07114 101 International Way
Tel: 973-643-8500 Newark, New Jersey, 07114
Fax: 973-648-0662 973-621-6200 Fax: 973-621-6266

Hilton Newark Airgort
Hilton Newark Gateway1170 Spring Street

Elizabeth, New Jersey Gateway Center - Raymond Blvd

07201-2114 Newark, New Jersey 07102-5107

Tel: 1/908/351-3900 Tel: (973) 622-5000

Fax: 1/908/351-9556 Fax: (973) 622-2644

Hilton Short Hills Holidal Inn North
41 JFK Parkway 160 Frontage Road

Short Hills, New Jersey 07078 Newark, NJ 07114
Tel: (973) 379-0100 Tel:(973) 589-1000
Fax: (973) 379-6870 Fax: (973) 589-2799

Howard Johnson Hotel Newark-Days Inn Airport
50 Port Street 450 Route I South

Newark, NJ 07114 (near Haynes Avenue)
Tel:(201) 344-1500 Newark, NJ, 07114

1-800-1-GO-HOJO (1-800-446-4656) Tel:(973) 242-0900
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Best Hotel
2735 Rte. 22 West
Union, NJ 07083

Tel: (908) 687-8600

Nei *ark	 Alrpoi-i Important Hvtov !N4wtbvn
PAPD (973) 961-6230 General Email Information
General Information (973) 961-6000 LaGuardia Airport Website
Impound Lot (973) 961-6230 www.laguardiaairport.com
Lost & Found (973) 961-6230 John F. Kennedy Website
ABM Parking Services SIC (973) 718-7270 www.kennedyairport.com
ABM Parking Services LnI (973) 718-7271 Newark Liberty Website
ABM Parking Services Ln2 (973) 718-7272 www.newarkairport.com
Supervisors Ln 1 (973) 961-6421 Port Authority Website
Supervisors Ln2 (973) 961-6422 www - P 4un- i --&O—V

Employee Sales (973) 961-022/2023 ABM Customer Service Email
Human Resources (973) 718-7259 parkingeustomerservice@,abm.com
Customer Service	 (973) 718-7267/7269 PA Customer Service Email

airportcustomercaregpanynj.gov

Yellow background signs are airline connected. You follow them to find airline ticket counters, gates or
baggage claim.

Black background signs are "services" connected. You follow them to find restrooms, elevators, ATM
machines, and other services.

Green background signs are transportation connected. You follow them to find parking, Taxis, Ground
Transportation Counters and buses.
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SIC/Supervisors — All SICs and supervisors are required to monitor and ensure the compliance by all staff of
established Airport Customer Service standards.

Under the direction of the Supervisor-In-Charge provide the first-line supervision of all personnel of
the contractor engaged in the parking lot operation to ensure safe and efficient service, which may
include resolution of problems at the exit plazas.



,,	 f, .,, ^	 ,..



Supervisor locations / call numbers at Newark Liberty International Airpori
Location	 Radio Call Number

Shoi Merm C TP Plaza 709
Plaza 3 711
Plaza 2 712
Plaza 1 712 A

Daily PI/P3 714
P4 Plaza 715
P4 Garage 715 A

Economy P6 716
P6 Field 716 A
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P7 716 B

Valet P4 Air-train station 801

Employee Lot F 717

Supervisor Field 710

SIC Field 703A

Supervisor Control room (FRCS) 706

SIC Control room 703

Supervisor locations at LaGuardia Airport
Location	 Radio Call Number

Lot	 1-7, 1 OE and IOW	 Byname

Ivupervisor locations at HK Airport
Location	 Radio Call Number

Lot I Green	 By Name

Lot 2 Blue

Lot 3 Red

Lot 4 Yellow

Lot 5 British Deck (Orange)

Long Term Grey

Supervisor Field

SIC Field

Supervisor Control room (RCS)

sic Control room



The cashier shall present an exceptionally well groomed, neat, clean, and conservative professional
appearance. Wear only appropriate accessories. Fully display nameplate, name tag and company's
identification at all times.
The cashier should be knowledgeable of airport destinations, entrances, exits, etc.



Directing Traffic at Newark Liberty International Airport
Short Term Parking — A-B-C Lot/Garage

• It is very important and a "must" that Traffic Attendants in the short term parking area communicate
any changes in traffic pattern to their supervisors.

• Weather and holiday related traffic is very common and directly effects traffic flow in the short-term



A "landline" should be requested only in the event of very long, detailed messages, or for
messages that are of a discreet nature. However, if the other party is not available for a
landline, you should relay the message in the shortest, most tactful way possible.

A- Alpha J- Juliet S-	 Sierra
B- Bravo K- Kilo T- Tango
C- Charlie L- Lima U- Uniform
D- Delta M- Mike V- Victor
E- Echo N- November W- Whiskey
F- Foxtrot ®- Oscar X- X-Ray
CI- Golf P- Poppa Y- Yankee
H- hotel Q- Quebec Z- Zulu
I- India R- Romeo

Beginl6 g rO' Cashier / Ura ffic 'Altv"da ll' t Shift
Each cashier and T/A reports to the control room at the beginning of their shift to clock-in, collect a money
bag, cashier shift report, receive lane assignment, and receive any other equipment needed.

There will be one supervisor (usually SIC supervisor) who ensures that incoming employees are in complete
uniform (see uniform policy), have their ID and nameplate. After this has been verified the employee may
punch-in and begin their shift. Each cashier must be issued a money bag and each T/A must be issued radio.

Cashiers mustbe in complete• 	 • name badge and 	 ep a - If theynot	 complete
orm they should a sent to the SIC sduty.

using
In order to perform the functions of the Federal APD equipment you are required to "Log-in" into the system
 Password". is of the utmost d 	[. b. your s

and Password". Your "Password" has to be changed every 90 days as a requirement of the PA Audit
Department and in accordance with the PA contract agreement.

ABM managementreports	 • a employees o continually log-in
incorrectand/or	 repassword allow
lock youout d as such, may result in delay opening	 congestion,	 our customer

programsservice	 and penalty from the PA.



Only use your own user name and password. If it is found that you are using a user name and password other

than your own, disciplinary 	 o	 be enforced.

Ft is importantto understand the list of • b responsibilities forposition. 0nderstanding the role that you

play is even more	 k• .emp loyeeso adhere to the responsibilities - L to them.
The chain of command and who you answer to is determined by the following chart.

General Manager

q,

Supervisors in Charge

3

Supervisors

'r
i

^^_	 Cashiers, Traffic
Attendants, Valet

follow any directives given from your immediate supervisor.

Unless a specific Human Resource policy is broken, all levels of the chain of command are to adhere to the

request of their supervisors.Please	 to the HumanResource sectionof this manual as guidelin e, Also,
please	 ' • the policies/procedures anJ professional conduct• ,. o f this manual.
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Each supervisor assigned or operating a company vehicle must complete a vehicle inspection checklist prior
to driving the vehicle. The checklist must be completely filled out each time a new drive takes over the
responsibility of a vehicle.

At EWR there is designated motorcycle parking located on the first level of the P4 garage. The entrance
located at the first level across from the valet stand should be used. This area is intended for airport
employees only. Since tickets are not used, the driver will not be charged for the usage of the space.

ABM Parking Services and/or the Port Authority are not liable for damages that occur to a vehicle while
parked in any self-service parking lots at the New York/New Jersey Airports. This includes Short-terra
parking Lots, the Long Te conomy parking lots and Employee parking Lots. Each issued parking ticket
has a written statement limiting liability. See below.



It is stated on the back of each issued parking ticket- This license expires in 30 days. Cars left for more than

30 days shall be deemed abandoned and will be disposed of at the owner's expense unless special

arrangements are made with the Parking Lot Manager.

S11VJ_1U_Y_V11H,@1CLC Ulf-MUMML	 111CY Cdff M41 k;-11111,14CM d PIUWC

report.

If a customer calls with a claim after he/she has left the parking lot, please complete an incident report over

the phone (make note that it was taken over the phone) and forward to the Customer Service and/or

Operations Manager.

'Valvl ( laims Report N('%N a0i' Libcrt-,^ i 11ternatiowd Airj)(W

If a customer is claiming damages to their vehicle while their vehicle was parked in valet, a valet incident

report should be completed. Once the claim is submitted by ABM to "Instant Estimator", the customer will be

contacted within 72 business hours. It is very important to obtain the email address of the customer. This will

be the primary and preferred means of communication between the claims director and the customer.

hicid"4t Reports	 Chtikw^

The valet manager will investigate all claims and will determine if ABM Parking Services is liable for the

claims. Should the investigation result from an employee's involvement the appropriate disciplinary actions

will be taken. Details of the investigation will be sent to the Administrative Executive to contact the patron to

provide three (3) estimates of the damages. The release will be sent to the patron before payment is made.

Should the investigation prove that ABM Parking Services is not liable a denial letter will be mailed to the

patron.

I tie incident reports involving vehicular accidents, damages, etc. should be forwarded to the Administrative

Executive. The customer should be notified that they can contact Customer Service for more information.

ldt, at and	 Injury

It is very important that incident reports are completed for any parking lot incidents that occur. These reports

should be clearly written and a detail description of the incident should be provided.

General procedures are noted, however, all applicable personnel (SIC, HP, various Managers) take pail in on-

line certification training for this procedure, If you are not fully aware of reporting procedures, please contact

your OPs Manager and a training session will be set up for you. A copy of the Accident Investigation manual

should be available at the SIC desk. Basic information such as what is noted below will always be required in

addition to what is in the on-line training.
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• The accident report has to be completed either by the Supervisor or SIC and NOT by the injured
employee.

• The accident reports should reach the HR Department within 24 hours from the time of the accident.

Employee In ss
How to Report an	 •i•	 the ABM	 1-888-840-414T

(Notify Your Regional Administrator Immediately After Caring For The Employee)

Directions: Supply the Nurse Practitioner with your REGIONAL INSURANCE CODE (EWR-4424, LGA-
4464, JFK-4469) and your location's (JDE) Business Unit Number (E 	 25801531, LGA-25801532, JFK-

25601532). Please consult with your Regional Claims Administrator following your report to the ABM
Nurseline.

Note: If the employee has already received medical attention and/or is not present D® NOT CALL the nurse.

REPORTCLAIM DIR.XTLY YOUR REGIONAL ; kr , ADMINISTRATOR	 ,

HOURS.



I A-BM's supervisor will respond to all emergency roadside service calls (within 15 minutes)
and will accompany the patron until the service is complete.

2. ABM's supervisor will handle service calls, such as, boost for vehicles with dead batteries. In
the event your attempts fail, inform the authorized airport towing service for assistance.

3. ABM supervisor will need to have the patron sign the liability waiver prior to providing
vehicle boost. If patron refuses to sign, then the supervisor should inform the SIC that the
boost cannot be done and additional services are needed for the patron.

4. Service calls such as, lock-outs, tire change and/or any services needed that ABM does not
have the capabilities to provide should be referred to the authorized airport towing service for
assistance.

5. ABM's supervisor, on scene, should inform the SIC if the authorized Airport towing service
does not show up within 15 minutes. It is very important to follow up on the service calls to
ensure the service is completed within the 15 minute period.

6. ABM's SIC/Supervisor will sign all receipts for the services provided. The original copy of
the receipts should be submitted to Management for the verification of the services provided
and for billing purposes.

7. All service calls should be recorded on the Daily Auto Assistance Form with complete detail
information.

F I 1w
The below report must be completed during each Tour for each parking lot. All supervisors should hand
report into their SIC at the end of their tour. Any urgent matters must be reported to your SIC immediately.
This report should be filled out with complete thoughts and/or phrases. Check marks should never be used.

If there is an emergency in your lot or in the CTF control room you will use the emergency buttons located in
each exit lane under the cashier terminal; and in the control room under two desks. Familiarize yourself with
the emergency buttons wherever you are working.

These buttons will dispatch the PAPD directly. The Cashier Terminal is also equipped with a safety feature
designed to aid the cashier in the event of an emergency. This feature is called the "Emergency Feature" on
the CT. This feature should be used for emergency purposes only. When the feature is activated it will open
the cashier drawer and raise the gate. If a cashier is audited and found to be abusing this feature, he/she will
be subject to disciplinary action and possible termination. (Not applicable at JFK).

ABM Parking Services is responsible for the safety and security of the Port Authority's property and
equipment. It is our responsibility to lock all booths and swing gates of lanes that are not in operation. You
will be accountable for any unlocked booths that are not in operation. The SIC on duty will makce sure this
function is performed by the field/plaza supervisor.
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Lot counts are to be done every hour in each lot. If the lot is full it is best to count the available spaces and
subtract from the total spaces in the lot. If the lot is empty it is best to count the vehicles and subtract from the
total. You may find it easier to use a clicker (counting device) to accurately count the lot.

To get the most	 •	 supervisor • d pull s ticket•m the TID before the c
At the end of	 ount the supervisor shouldpull an additional- •	 of
vehicles that parked while the lot countbeing performed.
*Due 	 • us matters all sjaces not be available at all times. Please be familiar with construction.-
happening in each lot prior to lot counts.

Lot closures occur primarily in long term/economy parking lots. The closing of a lot will be determined by
the Port Authority Operations Supervisor on duty. The lot should be closed early enough to prevent customers
from entering the lot and not be able to find a parking space.

Supervisors must be aware of heavy incoming traffic conditions that may cause a lot closure. Supervisors
should immediately notify the SIC on duty when the amount of available spaces in any lot drops below 100.
The lot should then be monitored continuously. The SIC should be notified again when there are 50 available
spaces. At that time the PA Operations supervisor on duty will make the final decision to close the lot.

If the lot closes a T/A will be assigned to the front of the lot to direct traffic. If the T/A is assigned to Long
Term/Economy Lot he/she will issue a parking voucher.

At the time of closure, it is important to snake a general broadcast over the radio. The message should indicate
the location and time of the lot closure (or opening).

:Y'M 0	 €€rs Qv Rag	 , 	 .air

When the economy/long term parking lots close customers will be sent to a specified daily lot.
• E	 - PI/P3 only with a green coupon
• JFK lied Lot (Terminal 8) with coupon
• LGA - Lot 1 with green coupon, Lot 4 with yellow coupon, Lot 5 with orange coupon or Lot 7 with

blue coupon

This coupon entitles the customer to the eono 	 ate for that stay only. The customerr
the coupon to receive the economy rate upon exit.
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ABM Parking Services Customer Service Department will be f• department for this program. T6P

customer service staff will be responsible for responding to all questions and concerns in regards to the

Premium Reserved Parking program. They will also ensure that the operations department are trained in all

aspects of the program so they will be able to respond to customer calls and inquires outside of normal

business hours.

The supervisor in charge (SIC) will request a reserved parkers list from the system each morning at 2AM.

The SIC will determine if the number of request can be accommodated in the reserved section of each facility

and will report any incidents of overbooking to Port Authority Operations and determine the number of



M:110/24/2011

additional spaces needed. The SIC will have their staff block off the additional spaces needed as close as
possible to the existing reserved area by 3AM.

The SIC will provide the supervisor assigned the responsibility of patrolling the reserved area with a current
list of customers who have pre-registered for a reserve space. The supervisors will make regular patrols of
the reserved areas to ensure compliance with the program.

The supervisor will compare license plates on vehicles parked to those who have reserved a space. When
there is a vehicle that is parked that is not on the list they will double check for a voucher before listing the
vehicle in violation. Below is a sample of the supervisors check list.

In case the P4 garage has to close the traffic attendant stationed at the entrance plaza will verify that the
patron has a reserved voucher and then direct them to proceed to the entrance plaza to enter the garage.

Violations will be confirmed with customer service or the SIC outside of normal business hours. Violators
will have a violation notice placed on their windshield and the vehicle information recorded on the
supervisor's check list.

Once a violation has been confirmed the SIC will report the violation to the 92 and follow their instructions.

of voucher below).

LaGuardia Internati1	 ` 1.1	 is	 ' a.

RESERVATION DATE
	

NUMBER OF BAYS
	

PLATE NUMBER
	

STATE

PLEASE DISPLAY VOUCHER ON YOUR DASHBOARD

THIS VOUCHER LIMITS OUR LIABILITY - PLEASE READ IT.
This contract licenses the holder to park one automobile in this area at holder's risk. LOCK YOUR CAR. we are not insurers and or not
responsible for damage to automobile or other articles by fire or any other cause, for theft of automobile or other articles or any other loss in
connection therewith, including without limitation, loss of use and physical damage thereof.

Self-Service Parking Lot — not attended. Only a license is granted hereby and no bailment is created. This is the full license and no
employee shall change it.

This license expires in 30 days. Cars left for more than 30 days shall be deemed abandoned and will be disposed of at owner's expense
unless special agreements are made with the Parking Lot Manager.

forwarded

Customer Calls Regarding Reservation Parking Procedures

1. When an incoming call regarding any aspect of the reservation program is received by the Control

Room during -usual business hours when the CS Department is "opened," the call should be

o the CS i-p.artment ftaddressing . B	 ^s ,y through
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If we cannot verify via the non-revenue list that the customer has non-revenue privileges we should ask them
politely to accept a balance due.

Non-revenue users are allowed two vehicle license plate numbers associated with a PIN or E-Z Pass. A non-
revenue user can only gain access to exit the parking lot using his/her PIN or E-Z Pass if the exiting vehicle is
programmed into the Federal system.

If the non-revenue user is not 	 r could not be alternately verified and refuses to pa y the
parking fee•	 r	 - due, contactyour x	 • who will informThe Port AuthorityOperation s

supervisor for their intervention. The PA Operations supervisor will advise or approve the course of action to

be taken. The appropriate log entries should be made.

Annual Pass privileges:
* Unlimited Free Parking in ALL Lots

If a tag holder is unaware of the privilege associated with their tag, they should contact the Port Authority or
who issued them their tag. It is not possible to determine their privilege in our system.

Drop safes are located in each exit booth, but since there is a different policy on use at each airport, please see
you SIC or Operation Manager for use at your location.

In the event any lot must go manual it is important to be prepared and able to manually calculate parking fees
based on the entrance ticket.

instructed otherwise by	 Pr Authority , - - plate number, state , d
time on each ticket. Non-revenue 	 r	 r d be recorded as such on the ticket and on 	 -
^ -rs

A lot bleed is similar to a manual operation. The cashier however, may not be required to write license plates,
states, and exit times on the tickets, This decision will be made by the Port Authority.

 the Port Authority Operations Supervisor at the end of the bleed. IfAll lot bleed tickets will be collected
requested ^^ 	Authority Operat ions ^ 	 Supervisor , ,M Supervisors shouldcollecting

individual
tickets in a timely manner.

Each	 port has various procedures r 	 bleeds. The +E Superv isor On	 4 -9
facilitate any lot bleed operation	 be cooperated with in order ensure compl iance.

1. remove back cover from receipt side of ACT using #I I  key.
2. Push down on locking pin located on bottom left of cabinet behind printer frame.
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- jcko Issuing I)V% ic('N J11))
Ticket Issuing Devices (TID) are devices that provide each customer entering the parking lot a ticket that
permits them to park in the lot. Each ticket has a printed license on the back.

There is a key ring assigned to each lot and plaza. The key ring is passed along to each incoming supervisor
from the previous supervisor. Keys are accounted for in the vault room. The vault room supervisor will verify
that each current supervisor is in possession of the key ring for their designated lot. Supervisors assigned to
the CTP area should verify with the vault room in person.
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Zero Coupon Issued to Customs and Border Protection Officers

Switchover occurs approximately an hour into each supervisor shift. At this time each cashier and traffic
attendant must wait until their relief comes to their location. It is not acceptable for any cashier to log out,
take their nameplate down, and/or stop accepting vehicles in their lane before their relief comes. The
supervisor must maintain the open number of lanes required at that time.

customerIf there is a	 present in a lane during the time of a physical switchover • 	 be •
asked to wait for the completion. A lane should not be entirely closed during a switchover, avoiding the need
to divert	 o a different

See cashier terminal manual for procedures to process the below transactions.
All exception transactions must be listed on the cashier's exception report, All exception transactions will
require a supervisor's approval.
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Official Business Pass- Issued to Port Authority employees and those doing business with the Port Authority.

fir`,.	 ' Passf!s - JFK' '^erfta"IW7,al Akport Port Authrity Passes - L4­'^',uaf ^,'t' ­ ")J-Poft

Customers with a press pass receive a 24 hour

period of free parking in all lots. The press pass

holder will be responsible for any time parked

beyond 24 hours.

1Y,e ^v

05PRE'S-SS,

A Certificate of Release must be completed for any Tow Truck transaction.

ed I

Should be processed using "adjust time" in the federal system. Supervisors may dispute up to 5 minutes off of

a fee. Anything over 5 minutes must be approved by a SIC and/or PA Operations. For any major delays due

to malfunctions, customer issues, etc. please contact the SIC to request the authorization of the Traffic Back-

Up function. The Traffic Back-Up function must be approved by PA Operations,

An identification check (ID) must be performed when a customer is unable to provide a valid driver's license
and/or a valid registration.
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To perform the ED check the supervisor contacts the control room supervisor who will then contact the PAPD
to respond to the lane.

When explaining  is the customerD check needsto be performed,supervisor • d explain it in a
non-threatening•	 •	 •	 protection. W- must be absolutely
that they are - owner before

record
The lane should be closed during the ID check. When the officer has completed the check and has given the

•	 badge number and name on - paper •

Customers who decide to use their EZ Pass at the airport must be enrolled into the EZ Pass Plus program. If a
customer attempts to use their EZ Pass and the overhead antenna does not read the tag, ask the customer to
remove it and try to use the patch antenna located inside your booth.

A customer may use their EZ Pass Plus to exit the parking if:
1. An EZ Pass Plus account is established through their EZ Pass agency.
2. 'Their EZ Pass is replenished using a major credit card.
3. If they are a commercial account user of EZ Pass they should call the EZ Pass customer service

center to have EZ Pass Plus activated.

All transactions under $20 will be deducted from a customer's EZ Pass balance. All transactions over $20
will be charged directly to the credit card that replenishes the customer's account.

Customers who have EZ Pass tags affixed to their bumper may have problems exiting the lots using EZ Pass
as a form of payment. If you are experiencing this problem please let the customer know that the equipment
does not read bumper tags. However, it has been found that on occasion the system will read them with no
problems.

q r"kP iu1(%( ac(404
Any misrepresentation of The Port Authority funds will be subject to investigation by the Port Authority
Police Department. 'these include but are not limited to:

• Manually raising and lowering the exit gate without authorization from a supervisor.
• Manually opening and closing cash drawers.

There is an electronic journal in each lane to be used for auditing purposes in the event of a system failure.
This electronic journal must be retrieved along with the ticket collection every day after the virtual midnight
occurs (immediately after midnight 00:00 AM at LGA and 03:00 at EYY'R and JFK).

Ensure a user is already logged into the ACT. If the lane is not	 •g on as a
supervisor.

2. Select the "View Journal" from the "Other" tab.
3. Enter the date and time range required and press "Submit" button



4. Touch the "Export" button on the next screen. Once the export action is completed,
press the "Cancel" button to exit.

5. If you logged on as a supervisor, close the shift completely.

Inventory at the public parking lots begins with a ABM Parking Services Mobile LPI Supervisor, assisted by
a traffic attendant, whose responsibility is to ensure all vehicles parked are properly recorded. Each day,



shortly after midnight, the MLPI Supervisor proceeds to the MLPI vehicle which captures an image of the
license plate recording them by lot and rove based on pre-programmed routes within each lot. The focus is on
the capturing the license plates by the MLPI cameras.
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Figure 4.2 POF Wideted TicW Illustration

aerwa PoP Paymenc POF station POP oB8 POF ID

Tidet	 E" Date	 Eahy L—
Fri Jun 27 2008 11:00

NurNer	 arMTi-	 Number
---------------------------------

Petry: 06/27/2008 10:30:28 In Q Entry Lane 0

t ps.m.os is:ari	 DT Paid Time:	 06/2712008 02:D0:06

Cashier:	 Pof89

„b Paid until:	 06/27/2008 02:30:06

-4
ID Type:	 Tic	 t

TD:	 081200	 0869 IdetNumber

a

Parking	 Fee ................$15.00:.:....

Addit lonal TIMFee ......... $1	 D
AfierPOF Payrrcfrt

Total Ammmt ...............	 0.00 (—POF Payment

POFID	 Amauurd D-..T—By-A	 DateazMTima AmDunt
Number	 Paid	 the Pa	 Must L—m	 of Paymsnt

Avokl 0.dtlAOnal Charges
CC Payment Arr=t:	 $15.00

Card Type:	 Visa

Acct:	 MODD0=0000
25	 T?IOH 18:33.	 TIW 18:03:0

Approval:	 Accepted

'DM ID:	 Un^
w
V
W	

Tyek: 'thcl'eN uatli fiefdelronaths Gmsths pahannexpeUedto lsavzllwfardliM
Alat is, it mclades crass ate.

Responsibilities
ABM Parking Services is contractually responsible for removing sna g and ice from the exit lanes to a
distance of thirty (30) feet in each direction from the door of each cashier booth.

Vehicles/ Equipment
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Me following will be discussed and arranged:

Picking up and dropping off employees at key public transportation points in the vicinity of the
airport. Employees will be informed to contact the Supervisor-In-Charge at EVV-R: (973) 718-
7270 or (973) 961-6421, JFK: (347) 238-3231 or (718) 244-4168, LGA: (347) 468-3928 or (718)
533-3850 should they need transportation.
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staffUse existing	 o cover main posts. Each lotshould have adequate  fi a •' to	 •.; a. ..
delaysthe traffic without	 J inconvenience to patrons. J . 	 • 'J will be billed accordingly

and should not sustain liquidated damages for deficiencies.

In the event of a "State of Emergency," ABM will provide proper accommodations and meals as
needed for employees working double shifts and employees holding over throughout the course
of the event. All efforts will be made to have a list of employees who will be covering key posts
during the lengthis the storm.

Snore Removal Operation
The snow removal operation will consist of the following:
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Alberta AB
British Columbia BC

Manitoba MB

New Brunswick NB

Newfoundland	 Labrador NL
Northwest Territories NT

Nova Scotia NS

ALABAMA AL
ALASKA AK

ARIZONA AZ
ARKANSAS AR
CALIFORNIA CA
COLORADO CO
CONNECTICUT CT
DELAWARE DE
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA DC
FLORIDA FL
GEORGIA GA

HAWAII HI
IDAHO ID
ILLINOIS IL

INDIANA IN

IOWA IA

KANSAS KS
KENTUCKY KY
LOUISIANA LA

MAINE ME
MARYLAND MD

MASSACHUSETTS MA
MICHIGAN MI

MINNESOTA _
MISSISSIPPI MS
MISSOURI MO

MONTANA MT
NEBRASKA NE
NEVADA NV
NEW HAMPSHIRE NH
NEW JERSEY NJ
NEW MEXICO NM
NEW YORK NY
NORTH CAROLINA NC
NORTH DAKOTA ND
OHIO OH
OKLAHOMA OK
OREGON OR
PENNSYLVANIA PA

ODE ISLAND RI
SOUTH CAROLINA SC
SOUTH DAKOTA SD
TENNESSEE TN
TEXAS TX
UTAH U1
VERMONT VT
VIRGINIA VA
WASHINGTON WA
WEST VIRGINIA
WISCONSIN WI
WYOMING WY

or the provinces and territories in Canada.
Nunavut	 NU
Ontario	 ON
Prince Edward Island 	 PE
Quebec	 QC

Saskatchewan	 SK
Yukon	 YT
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FurTITIT ences on Me MIT - s periormance ors-1777-riar '77M

years, including all current contracts. Use additional sheets as necessary.

Parking Management, Valet, Public and Employee Shuttle

Customer Name: Colorado Springs Airport

Address: 7770 Milton Proby Parkway, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80919
Contact Name and Title: Mark Earl - Aviation Director
Phone and Fax Numbers of Contact: p (719) 550-1909, f (7119) 550-1932
Contract date (s): - Present (Operated since 2004',

Contract cost: $8,535,000,00
Description of work: Parking Management, Valet and Public Shuttle

Annual Staff Hours: 89,596 total; 87,100 (full time), 2,496 (part fime')

w
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M^^, 	 ABM Parking Services
s penormance ot similar worK wit

years, including all current contracts. Use additional sheets as necessary.

♦ 	 ♦ I

Parking Management and Public Shuttle

Customer Name: Eppley Airfield

Address: 4501 Abbott Drive, S uite 21300, Ornaha, Nebraska 68110

Contact Nam-
r ♦ 	 d Fax Numbers of Contact: p(40'4)661-,8000,f(402')661-8025
Contract date (s): - Present (Operated since 1991.)

Contract cost: $63,755,000.00

Description of work: Parking Management and Public Shuttie
Annual Staff Hours: 100,103 total; 86,947 (full time), 13,156 (part tirne)I

NMI



Name of Proposer: ABM, Parking Services

years, including all current contracts. Use additional sheets as necessary.

Parking Management (only operated on certain days 
of 

the week depending on flight schedules)
Annual Staff Hours: 2,080 total; (all full time)

Annual Staff Hours: 12,896 total; 12,064 "full time), 832 (part time"

MR



years, including all current contracts. Use additional sheets as necessary.

Parking Management, Valet and Ground Transportation Management
Annual Staff Hours: 247,760 total; 235,682 (full time), 12,078 (part time)

Annual Staff Hours: "12,896 total; I (38'16 (full Lime), 2,080 (part firne)

HE



Rl^^$ 6 M ABM Parking Services

ease ?ro7TV7TAYsT M-MM"Ves I I Te Mai 7tleriorix.Tice Ul	 17=77T

years, including all current contracts. Use additional sheets as necessary.

Customer Name: Long Beach Airport

Address: 4100 Donald Douglas Drive '"crag Beach, California 90808

Contact Name arid Title: Mark Echmalian - Administrative Analyst

Phone and Fax Numbers of Contact: p (662) 570-2622, f (562) 570-2601

Contract date (s): 1997 - Present

Contract cost: $23,733,000.00

Descripti®n of work: Parking Managernent and Public Shuttle

Annual Staff Hours: 265,760 total , 25^, 7 1 560 fRill bIrne), 8,200 (part time)

MN
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ABM Parking Services

Please provide a list of references on the firm's performance of similar work within the last five

years, including all current contracts. Use additional sheets as necessary.

W*MM	 111`11111111E ^ 	 1111170111111111 	1111̀ 11 11 i III!! 
1111^111

Valet Parking Management

Annual Staff Hours: 26,624 total; 24,960 'full time), 1,664 (part time)

(JFK, EWR & LGA operated under one contract)

Annual Staff Hours: 502,440 total; 494,120 (full time), 8,32"0 (part tirrie)

M,



ff"MMITUMMM ABM Parking Services

Parkin Manaqement and Public Shuttle

CustomerName: Orlando international Airport
Address: One Jeff Fuqua Boulevard, Orlando, Florida '-28217
Contact Name and Title: Ron Lewis -De 	 Ex©«, , D c . r - Operations
Phone and Fax Numbers of Contact: p 1,40'17) 825-2095, f (407) 825-3355
Contract date (s): 2002 - Present
Contract cost: $30,800,000.00
Description of work: Parking management and Valet Parking

Annual Staff Hours: 216,736 total-, 215,696 (full time), 1,040 (part, t;rne)

w



Name of Proposer: ABM Parking Services

V F-Me ^MTTTUE IF j	 s eriormance IT swil

yeRrs, including all current contracts. Use additional sheets as necessary.

Annual -Staff Hours: 5,250 total^ 4 800 (full time), 450(part firne)

Customer Name: Ronald Reagan National Airport

Address: 2401 Smith Boulevard, Arlington, Virqinia 22202

Contact Name and Title: Kathleen McKeever -

Phone and Fax Numbers of Contact: p (703 11 41 7-8038, f (703) 417-8260

Contract date (s): 2010-Present

Contract cost: $ 15,884,000.00

Description of work: Parking Management

Annual Staff Hours: 137,265 total; 129,912 (fell time), 7,353 (part tune!

RK



Name of Proposer: AE3M Parking Services

Please provide a list of references on the firm's performance of similar work within the last fi
years, including all current contracts. Use additional sheets as necessary. 	 i

Parking Management and Public Shuttle

M



Name of Proposer: ABM Parking Services

Please provide a list of references on the firm's performance of similar work within the last fi
years, including all current contracts. Use additional sheets as necessary. 	 i

M

Parking Management
Annual Staff Hours: 7,436 total; 6,240 (full time), 1,196 (part time)

Customer Name: Washington - Dulles international Airport
Address: One Saarinen Circle, Dulles, Virginia 20166
Contact Name and Title: Matthew Sherwood - General Business Si: =-c 	 t
Phone and Fax Numbers of Contact: p (703) 572-2585, f ('703) 572-82,.''
Contract date (s): 2010-Present

Contract cost: $22,517,000.00
Description of rk: Par

'Annual Staff Hours: 283,640 total; 239,960 (full time), 43,680 (part time)

HE



Name of Proposer: ABM Parking Services
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Austin—Bergstrom International Airport — Austin, Texas
Parking & Valet Management, Public & Employee Shuttle Operations

Boise Air Terminal — Boise, Idaho
Parking Management, Public & Employee Shuttle Operations

Colorado Springs Airport — Colorado Springs, Colorado
Parking & Valet Management, Public Shuttle Operations

Dallas—Fort Worth International Airport — DFW, Texas
Express Parking Operations, Terminal Link Shuttle Operations

Denver International Airport — Denver, Colorado
Public & Employee Shuttle Operations

Des Moines International Airport — Des Moines, Iowa
Parking Management, Public Shuttle Operations

Eastern Iowa Airport — Cedar Rapids, Iowa
Parking Management

Epply Airfield — Omaha, Nebraska
Parking Management, Public Shuttle Operations

Gary—Chicago International Airport — Gary, Indiana
Parking Management

Greenville—Spartanburg Airport — Greenville, South Carolina
Parking Management

Hilo International Airport — Hilo, Hawaii
Parking Management

Honolulu International Airport — Honolulu, Hawaii
Parking, Valet & Ground Transportation Management

JFK International Airport — New York City, New York
Parking Management

John Wayne Airport — Orange County, California
Employee Shuttle Operations

Keahole—Kona International Airport — Kona, Hawaii
Parking Management

LaGuardia Airport — New York City, New York
Parking Management

Lambert — St. Louis International Airport — St. Louis, MO

Parking Management, Public Shuttle Operations

Uhue Airport — Lihue, Hawaii
Parking Management

Long Beach Airport — Long Beach, California
Parking Management, Public Shuttle Operations

McCarran International Airport — Las Vegas, Nevada
Valet Parking Management

Mesa Gateway Airport — Mesa, Arizona
Parking Management, Public Shuttle Operations

Minneapolis—St. Paul International Airport — St. Paul, Minnesota
Parking & Valet Management

Newark Liberty Airport — Newark, New Jersey
Parking & Valet Management

Norman Mineta San Jose International Airport — San Jose,
California
Parking Management, Public Shuttle Operations

Oakland International Airport — Oakland, California
Parking & Valet Management

Orlando International Airport — Orlando, Florida
Parking & Valet Management

Raleigh—Durham International Airport — Raleigh, North Carolina
Cashiering, Shuttle Driver & Security Staffing Services

Ronald Reagan Washington National Airport — Arlington, Virginia
Parking Management

Sacramento International Airport — Sacramento, California
Parking Management, Public, Rental Car & Employee Shuttle Operations

San Francisco International Airport — San Francisco,
California
Ground Transportation Management

Santa Barbara Airport — Santa Barbara, California
Parking Management, Employee Shuffle Operations

Southwest Georgia Airport — Albany, Georgia
Parking Management

Tampa International Airport — Tampa, Florida
Parking & Valet Management, Public Shuttle Operations

Tyler Pounds Regional Airport — Tyler, Texas
Parking Management

Washington Dulles International Airport — Chantilly, Virginia
Parking & Valet Management

Wichita Mid Continent Airport — Wichita, Kansas
Parking Management, Public Shuttle Operations

Will Rogers World Airport — Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
Parking Management, Public Shuttle Operations, Ground Transportation Mgmt
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® Financial Capabilities 	 assets necessary to compete effectively in
today's complex marketplace.



Statement of Work on Hand
ABM Parking Services currently has th'-.
following airport work on hand.







Kansas City International Airport, Kansas
City Missouri

Cervices: Public Shuttle

Proposals Pending
ABM Parking Services has proposals pending
for the following airport operations:



. 	 ^ . . \ \^ }/\^ ^ ^ : ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^  \^\
5,

Santa Barf ara Airport, Santa Barbara,
Ca l iforn ia

Serv ices: Parking Management & Emp loyee

Shuttle (ABM is the incumbent operator)

Financial Institution Information

Ampco System Park ing D nA ABM Pa rking

	

©c 	 utilizes the following banks, among
othe rs, for our nationa l pa rk ing ope rations.

Bank of America

125 S Ma rket Street, 2 nd F loor
San Jose, California 95113

Contact: Ken Jones, Senior ?©. President

(408) 277-7644

Wells Fargo

375 Park Avenue, 3rd Floor

New Yo rk, New York 10152

Contact: Eric Frandson, Director

(212) 214-7214

JP Morgan Chase Bank

56n Miss ion St reet, 1 9th Floo r

San Franc isco, Ca l iforn ia 94104

Contact: Cha rles Ackma n, Manag ing Di recto r

(415) 315-3976

11 1111 11 111"!	 1 	 1!1 	 11 11!!111111 r III
	I

If - I ^1- -1  a 2f +

Financial Data

ABM I ndust r ies' fiscal year 2011 aud ited
financial statements have been placed on the

fo l lowing pages, as we ll as our mos t recent
<# #  dated 4/30/2012.
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Title of each cla!^s

Common Stock, $.01 par vall
Name of each exchange on which registered

New York Stock Exchange

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMIS.0,10F

WASHINGTON , s

CEMM

71 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

Ah M a Ah

Delaware
	

94-1369364
(State or other jurisdiction of
	

(I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization)
	

Identification No.)

651 Fifth Avenue, Suite 300, New York, New York	 10176
(Address of principal executive offices) 	 (Zip Code)

(212) 297-0200
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

.arge accelerated filer 0	 Accelerated filer	 0
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Fable of

kBM Industries Incorporated:

Ve conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
;tabam). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
tetements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial napnMUng was maintained in all
iaterial respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
/mounteand disclosures in the financial atotemonte, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
nanogemant, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
icluded obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
md testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the aueeeood risk. Our audits also
icluded performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a
oaoonab|e basis for our opinion.

LBM Industries Incorporated and subsidiaries as of October 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash
ows for each of the years in the three-year period ended October 31, 2011 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
rinciples. Also in

41
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/s/ KPMG LLP
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,BM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
^ONSOL1DATED BALANCE SHEETS

mmue,n1.
n thousands, except share amounts) —__2012 -_-2010-__

$
Tradeonoourltar*uaivahka.netofa]^w'onnenof 	 13.485and^1^.072ai C cbuber31	 2O11 and

2010. reopeo|ve|y 552.098 45O.513
Pn*poidl monona taxes ^.2U^ ^.*B8
Cunendassets Vf discontinued operafionm 1.002 4.200
PrepaNexpensea O.023 4?.306
Notes receivable and other 52.756 ?C 402
Deferred income taxea. net 40.565 193
|nsurmnoeracovenab|eo 10851 5,138

|da/ ounen^asse{e 7	 '5T 608756

|nn'nurvan^ assets of discontinued operations 21G 1 382
ioorancedcposits .974 36.\64
»her investments and long-term receivables 5.708 4.445
efernedino/me taxes, ne f 30.940 3|.0G8
munancerocoverab|ea 59.750 73.980
/the'euoets 43.17B 37.809
weobnerdain auction rate securities 15.670 2O.171
woohneritain unconsolidated affiliates net 14.423 --
noperty ' plant and equipment, net ofaccumu|a^ed depreciation of$S7.81Q,and$BB.O84ot
October 31.2O11 and 2U1U.resPeoi|ve|y 60.039 58.085

'the/ intangible assets, net u^ao 	 mo|aioda/^	 '/^i/.^|..`'.r^7^'7^r%'	 /.-,'x`^`°
aod,2010.respecive|y ^^^'9^^ u^.774

/oodvviU 750,372
oIia|assets



78^420

\13.233 96.08^
19.144 17.663
7B.828 7T.Y01

102 1 220 7O.11&
___307 Q77

443,198 333,8 

38230 29.455
300.DO0 140.500
39707 34.826

2_G2^73 27^213 
809,645,

535 520
211.38Q 192.418

(2 t661) U.883)
586,625 547,944

79 r" 888 739025

Table of Contents

`
"K8Industries Incorporated andS ubsidiaries

-JNSOLDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued)

^iAB\L111LS AND ST(^^^^^^^^^^^i^ ^.a^., ^
Current liabilities

Tradeaccoui tm^ayaNa
Acomed|iabi|ideo

ensation

Taxes 'othe than income
!nsunenced^/ma
Other

Income taxes nayab|e
Total current liabilities

wwne^^n^^Wu
Line of credit
Rad{remen1 plans and other
insurance claims

Toia|hmbUihoa
Commitments and Contingencies

ST0CKHQLDERS'B]U|TY
Pnefened stock, $O.U1 par value- 5OO.00O sha res authorized- none issued
Common stock, $001 par value, 10O,0U0O0O shares authorized, 5l333,071 and 52^835.3,4^

shares issued and outstanding atOctohe' ^' 3011 and 2010 ' (especdve|y
Addidona| paid-in capite|
8ocumu|ated other comprehensive loss- net cftaxem
Retained earnings

Total stucKh older a'equity

bs| liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompany i ng notes tm the consolidated financial statements.
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2011 2010 2009

324,762 241

4

(127) 2, 129
9115 

_____^15,805) X4 , 63 9;
105,678 104,073 84.660 
(980 ___(40,203) ,1 70)

68 6988 618 70 59.490

(194

$	 68,504 C5,	 G z:	 21 5L, 2

$	 1.29 S	 ..23 1.08

$	 1.29 $	 1.23 $

	

1.27 $	 1.2 '1

	

1.27 $	 1.21 $	 1.05

kBIVI Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
'ONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

,ears ended October 31,
in thousands, except per share data)

X I- j I;,

r

SeHkc. general and administrat:ve
Anic.), , -1-11on of ^rila ngihle

, A -̂:fl expenses

Veratir"g p(ofi..

Other-thai—Lernporary impairmeni iosses on auciiori rate security:

M-Wi r mpw losses

Impairments recognized in other co m prehensive incorne

-tcofnp frcml unconsoliclated affhNlkas. net

riterest expense

-)(:owe fron ,

'

continuing opei attc,	 c i ncwne taxi ,'`.z

Irovision for 
i
ncome taxes

icome from continUfrIg

)iscontinued Operations

(Loss) incorne froo' j i , continued	 )ns net k f i	 =

Jet income

ye! income Per common share -Basic

Income from continuing operations
Loss fror yl discontim)a-d operations

Net Income

let mcorrie por'. e-lm()Vl S, q-,- , 4 . ......... Ulkiled

incorne Irorr. c;c.ntinJ i n-"- (,,ieratiors

71^

	

a-7	
^7^7',Z73

	

3	
2

	0.54 	 $	 0.52Hvidends declared per common share	 0.56 $

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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M Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
4NSOLI®ATE® STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated

	

Additional	 Other
Common Stock	 Treasury Stock	 Paid-in	 Comprehensive	 Retained

(in thoissinds)	 Shares	 Amount	 T Shares	 Amna,nt	 (:a Zital	 income (Loss)	 Earnincas	 Total

Comprehensive income:
N	 r=_,'<' I ,!e
Unrealized gain on auction

rate securities, net of
1 . _ - of $203	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 297	 —	 297

-	 ji	 currency translation,
taxes of $241 —	 —

Unrealized loss on interest
rate swaps, net of taxes
of $412 —	 —

f	 t ,r, l(''fehFt''i3WE?	 rf iF:n,tie;

Dividends:
r.^.raur^en <trck, _

Tax effect from exercise of stock
options —	 —

;rc
=foci 	 ^	 _	 1,iars r ^-i	 e,

Share-t	 N	 q 	 expense —	 —
T	 ea^>rir^ , tt	 '8. r^',r^n^arEf r r VISr	 i	 (!)

à alance October 3 1;, 2009 51,688	 517
,prr[ fr•.^ve r 	 r.rne

Net income —
thxr;ali^ed g-.u, un =^^tr4ior,

nc id a dJfUJUllcili iUr U6Uh
losses recognized in
earnings, net of taxes of
$53 —	 —

i<<=Ig,i ( oten , ; triwtclzation
Actuarial foss—Adjustments

to pension and other
post-retirement benefit
plans, net of taxes of

Comprehensive income —	 —

Common stock —	 --

Rock issued under employees'
stoc!	 e and opiion dens 94.7	 9

Salance October 31, 2010 52,635	 $	 526

0	 3u

7	 —	 577

	

74	 —	 74

	

(381)	 —	 (381)

64.631

—	 —	 —	 (23.'i52)	 (23.152)

—	 4	 --	 (501)	 10.992

	— $ 	 192,418 $	 (1,863)	 $	 547,944 $	 739,025

(602)	 (602)

	

6 Z7i	 (>[, I i7)

(1.314)
	

(1,314)

	

. , Est	 r< <:;
7,411
	

7,411

i__,__1 _7_6_ .480  $
	

(2.423) S	 512,476 $	 687,050

—	 64.121	 64.121

4kt
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BM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
®NS®LIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
>onti need)

ire incom e —	 68,504
t	 f	 2	 .,1

Unrealized gain on auction
+p c ..	 k^ ..	 ncii 4

Actuarial loss - Adjustments to
pension and other post-
retirementbenefit plans,
net of taxes of $996	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 (1.433)	 —

vidends
........

ix effect from exerciSE 
options	 (467)	 _	 —

,ck	 .._

^J
care-based compensation expense	 —	 _	 9,191	 —	 —
0artce octob4, r''J1, W,Ui

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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1M Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
,aNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended October 31,
fin thousands) 2011 2010 2009

64, 12 1 7	 n 3

Income Fro.— continuing operations 68,698 63,870 55,490
Adjustments to reconcile income fro gy,	 operation ed

by continuing operafitig activities,

Depreciation and amortization of in l angib !e assets 6'58 36,315 33,325
jr.cc r ie taxes 6 -5  i 1(1	 1 C, 11,

Share-based compensation expense 'D ' 1 9` 4,071 /,4,11
FItevision 

for 
bad debt 1 42 2,636 3,9611)

Discount- accretion on irs-Irance claims 874 9,12 1,248
Auction rate security credit loss impairment 566

Gain or sale of assets

income ffcirn unconsolidated affiliates, oet (3,91
Distributions from unconsolidated affiliates 2,539 -
Changes 

in 
assets and l i abilities, net of effects of acqu-'s-mon's,

Trade 2CCOUnts receivable (18,432) 1,976 19,931
Prepaid expenses and other :current assets (i 7B6) t29i) f 1 43 
Insurance recove rables 5,488 (3, 981) (500)
Other assets arid, long-tern, receivables 11),962 3856 (8, 764)
I ncome taxes payable 4,396 22,629 12,623
Retirement plans and 01hef - 110h-GUIrPnt liabiRies (4:085) (31 (5; 144)
insurance claims (11,950) 1247)
Trade accounts payable and other accrued i iabl:mes 25t943, ('/ .399) i2,213)

i:al adjustrnients 38,102 76,876 65 765
Net cash prov ided by contir,	 jnq w)e(atin	 activifies 156.800 140^ 74C 2,55

-1 	j';f" V j' 
I 
t',,3 SNe' casn orovided bV 3, 1190. 9.1 1 8 19,616

cash Proviaed b\j, 01)49­ 3 i lr 1 ,) 9 i0 1 4	 8(34 1410.8-i 1

rash flows frorn € q vesflrdg ac'.'
Additions	 r.Aant ano	 v	 er ld U 4:
Proceeos 'nom safe o.' assets and other 912 1,512 2,'°s 5 5

jnesse ,6 , net ci f CZI E. I .

Invest m& - :L :_ 	_nc-nnsoliGiated 215
rate 0

Net cash used in investing activ i tie^, 2
ff flows frr'r W-n financinu wfiv4lips.

Proceed' s fro .n. ex	 r cJse s	 f s,	 c k	 o , i r-)	 s	 t" 
1 7 -j, J)

Ofvldend ,":  5

Dem .. ecl, financi Q	 t	 ^Jd 5,021
,^C. n GvVings ii on 	 i : l ­- ^3	 n ^?,-1	 no, 0 • 3 8 nof
Repavrnent ,;, i	 ^fom ! i r-a oi creorl, 1 8 IJ D	 1 li5 3_1

0 9	 )­39 2
ncfc:"ase lil	 AS1 , ^A ,̂ J

In@,nc	 s equ i va leni s	 beginn.no

sr.]



,BM Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries
'ONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

'Up	 lau,

:ash Paid or income taxes. net ,)r' refunds received 426
ax ra^fert from e ,,wlose	 7

:ash received -"-om exercisao, 	 7 -
,fterest paO on 1,ne of
Ion-cash investing activities-.

con	 S,0("	 b, S^;,	a,,­ ,

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Fhe Company is organized into four reportable operating segments, Janitorial, Engineering, Parking and Securdy, which are
;ummarized as follows:

Dperating profit
)enhnda\
Hngineering
'aoong
Seouhh/
'urpurotp
]pnnaUngprofit
]th*+than-tennpo.ary|npa/onen1waaeu or) auction. raieseouoiy

Year ended October 31,

2011	 2010	 2009

$2.38O.1	 $2.300.098 $2.346.257
8^0 ' 361 382.629 341.482
615.679 468.308 457.477
]58 ' 377 336249 334.@10

4240.842 ^ 3^4857̂47 9.481 t 823 

140 ' 621 14D.0017 15917D
33?84 22.931 20,346

22.73O 20.285
7968 7.487 8.221
8	 ) 8	 «/ 9 5,915)

117.568
__

108.839
__

02.107

in thousands)'

)eni^oha|
^ngineeo^^
:)aming
5*curky

Gross impairment losses 	 --	 --	 (37699)
Impairments recognized |n other compnahenn/v+mcoma	 --	 (12T)	 212g

noome^om unconsolidated a^|iskeo.net 	 3.915	 --	 —
n1ereetexpenee 	 (15^p-O5)	 1, 4, 6 314, 
ncome from continuing operations before income taxes

'active November 1, 2010. the Company changed the management reporting responsibility fora subsidiary from the Janitorial
^mentto the Engineering segment. Amounts for the years ended October 31.2810 and 2OOQ have been retrospectively adjusted

o naOoot this organizational change. The impact of the organizational change on the reported results for the years ended
)ctober 31, 2010 and 2009 was a reclassification of $31.8 million and $35.8 million of revenues, respectively, and $1.0 million and
^0.7 million of operating profit, respectively, from the Janitorial segment to the Engineering segment.

,TV



I 
al - : of Contents

I
LOJ
o ww -
s &JO] i Lllr^j %Jfn I I EnJILS] r^,j	 ft

n thousands)

-A S-	 1"

Q,

larking

;ecurity

'Orporate

lepreciatic n and Amortization

awtorial

:ngineering

larking
;ecurity

:or )orate

:apltal Expenditures

Year ended October 31,

2011	 2010	 2009

T	 3509,3 1 902,54 881 362-1

4 16 9, 8	 i (3b -/ 1i, }f 4

49,052 '145,801 1.00,549

1 1 .304 1 2', 1944 U7' . i36
287,909 313.772 347,239

,'	 39G. ....... ..... ....•. . ........ 1,543,018 1.50?  '1"' 9

19 03^5 1 f3 ' 3 5s3 0M,
1 5,214 549 350
3 6-44 7 9. 2 i 4 (31
4 4 1 1,443 1,703
324 1 10"3I i

52 358 30,315 33,325

anilo ,ial 0, 04 8 12,503 6,633

.riginee"Ing 1;280 79 749

,arking 2,023 '11,265 1,81 iz

ecurity 141 451 1?"5u

;oqnora^e 8.532 S 84 4 9,127

$	 ',	 1 24	 $ 9412	 $ 1 8, '5 8 1-

Excludes assets of discontinued operations of $2.2 million, $5.7 million and $15.4 million as of October 31, 2011, 201 0 ai
2009, respectively.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C.0,<<

I1,It; % L^"f&f

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR	 OF	 S EXCHANGE
ACT OF , i3

For the quarterly period ended April 30, 2012

;f

TRANSITIONP ,i .	 i;; SECTION OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF t 4

For the transition period from	 to

Commission file number: 1-8929

ABM INDUSTRIES INCORPORATED
m' of	 .F'	 k in its charter)

Delaware	 94-1369354
(State or other jurisdiction of	 (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization)	 Identification No.)

551 Fifth Avenue, Suite 300, New York,

irate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
uch filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ® 	 No 0

irate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-'T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or

such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes 91	 No

irate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
ipany. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

ge accelerated filer 1] 	 Accelerated filer

i-accelerated filer ®	 (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)	 Smaller reporting company

irate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes ® 	 No 0

ite the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

Class	 Outstanding at June 1, 2012
Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share	 54,074,312 shares
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83, , 395

9470 1 ft

i 5„

J1L.033,5,N 4

3EMMM4

ABM INDUSTRIES INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended

April 30,

2012	 201 1

reco-nized in cariimvs

(000,	 1 ,1 ,0111	 ?lfhhatet^, fwl

erest cxp(-,,iisc	 (2,4411,	 317

*()me from	 t f ln-,,	 17,010	 2.3 G

,vision for il"C01"I ': ^X%	 '5,863)	 ( 8,8 14)

'(Rile 11mv	 1 1 . 7 4 711	 1 4, '(;( E

ss froni discotitillUCC i operations, net of taxes 	 (35)

I ilicimle	 —11-, 12	 —8I T 1 2

t income per comnimi share—Basic

1 fIC4

oss from	 net 
of 

taxes . ........ .

ico gne per commor, share—Difuteli.

-)Ss o f taxes(ro... dkcor l int, e ,Jon̂ cl	 net . .. ...... .
It	 locitoll."

^i g 11 te 6 --,,A v r ge C I m Inon and common eq	 ---ilent s h	 s	 i , -,s r Y	 n
. . . .. .......

5 3,94! 4.

Di4ac ' !	 54,5 6 36	 54,159

thousands, except per share data)

:Pk a ins

( +pt,t;llilw

Sellinty, 0 encral al1L administrati % e

Aw-ill, i P - t :, IoNfliTihk,

inipairrnk2iit	 relit iosscs on a"tcooi-, r, , tc	 ectiritv

Six Months Ended

2012	 7011

.1	 1 Ji

69, 1 84	 166,050

.094,370	 -L045,837

1 31,

4 (t t`	 I ^,

(5 ,2 75)	 63)

1 3,3 . 
7)	 066)

(45) —124)

$

.41

4	 4

. . ........

54,728	 54,026

$

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements
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ABM INDUSTRIES INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

Six Months Ended

April 30,
2vsands2

I 2011

h Rows from opc -nos i--" ^^"ivitV"

income

net of taxes

we fi•0111 con-'iI-J1I-1-̂ 0-1 ,craiiins 0 5

usNitents N) rctv gwilc inconle from	 to net casfi'i D w4i^ Nhv h

ireciatioi l alid an,,ortlzatiun .'>,80 2-5,906

6 . 0 05
re-based conipcnsation- expersc 5,-1 ;6 ?.600
-i " Ioo I )r kid dcht

-ouiit accrction on 1llSUrUllCC C	 M I,IW 36( ?E,

ity"nairtil"w

P oil sale of assets 'I.229'r
lilic fi-on) tjnc(iiisohd;' wd	 i;('!

.Tibutions from unconsolidated affiliates 738
ljahthiier. net Ol'uttects of ac(ju Isit lolls,

Trade accounts receivable -^65,^-0,-

I nsurance recovcrables (85 (1.046)

incoirc 'taxes p.-yablc 9,604 2,` 32
plim "	olfwl	 iwo .-ekincill liv"llitics (i. i4 1) 

liisurancc cl'amis 6,987
I JJ'fr jjk't 4it'flj"' ha)	 mid ;;tll" r as	 1w,"!

ad.j C?sl nn clits
- — - - ------- ----

cash provided by discont i nued operas -`- acti ,' in-1

4-wsh pro'  Wed BB'S' :qwo'-Aing	 i'hq'4

frum	 esd-n- '.4'th -"Vcs"'

plows ;od CLjj-Pp !"WIli

wds '-om sale 
of 

assets an ,,! othc-. ,793
6 -9

istn

0". ..........

-et_ds 1-ru l -.11 ex	 s^ " ofst"cl< 7.7

^rred 	 costs paid (4,991

61.500
l f ot-	 rt	 redit '	 X 8,0, 006 000)

4.986

nst 6	 r-)	 ",I	 _	 7lancing activities j	
—9 6 248,392

kk'_'f;.,ase	 aW ca ,,U cum , Lid (1,056) (16,156)
hI aLu cash cquv, Aents at beginpun- op^^riodC, 26,467 39,446

h and cash equivalents at end of period 25,411 23,290

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements
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(Continued)

Six Months Ended
April 30,

2012 2011

5, ; 6, $4,79-s

6,465

5.410

ABM INDUSTRIES INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

iousandc)

h paid for P.;omo ! ,,̂ c l % o." 	 ." C-Wcd

(Hi"!'1 irl^tTl t	 f^^ t1i ;`rrl ^i)!)ti

h received Ifo;ii -\ercisc O^ Jpl!GiiS

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As prescribed by FASB Accounting Standards Codification 820 ("ASC 820"), Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, fair vat
fined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market

ticipants at the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value should maximize the use of observable inputs and

.iimize the use of unobservable inputs. These inputs consist of (1) observable inputs—market data obtained from independent sources, or

unobservable inputs—market data determined using the Company's own assumptions about valuation. ASC 820 establishes a hierarchy to

:)ritize the inputs to valuation techniques, with the highest priority being given to Level I inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs, as
,cribed below:

Level 1— Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2 — Inputs other than Level I that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities

in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations in

which all significant inputs or significant value-drivers are observable 
in 

active markets; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy, carrying amounts, and fair values of the Company's significant financial instruments

)f April 30, 2012 and October 31, 201 1:

April 30, 2012 October 31 2 2011
Fair Value Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Hierarchy Amount Value Amount Value

1 $ 25,411 25,411 $ 26,467 $ 26,467

2 564,055 564,055 552,098 552,098

2 6,027 6,027 5,210 5,210

1 4,945 4,945 4,717 4,717
7 7,994 17.994 15,670 15.670

312 1^6 I "' A $604. 1 h ^(Y04, 16?

W019 $128,619 $130,464 $130,

242 242 253 -
266,000 166000 100000 300,006

$394,861 $394,861 $430,717 $430,717

iousands)

efs,

Cash anti cash

Trade accutini. ,, tuccivable, net
Notes receivable

Assets held in ftinded deferred compensation plan

Tjr,.-estments in aucdoii

Total

biHtk!s

Trade accounts payable;

Interest rate swap

Line of credit

Total

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the Company's classes of financial instruments for which it

-acticable to estimate that value:

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at nominal value which equals fair value.

The carrying value of the Company's trade accounts receivable and payable, notes receivable, current assets 
of 

discontinued operations,

,aid expenses, and accrued liabilities approximates fair value due to their nature and short-term maturities of these instruments. Currently,

- is no indication that a decrease in the value of the Company's notes receivable is probable. Therefore, the allowances on credit losses of

s receivable are immaterial.

The fair value of the assets held in the funded deferred compensation plan is based on quoted market prices. The assets are included in

er assets" on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

For investments in auction rate securities, fair value is based on discounted cash flow valuation models, primarily utilizing unobservable

ts. See Note 6, "Auction Rate Securities," for the roll-forwards of assets measured at fair value using significant unobservable Level 3 inputs

ffie sensitivity analysis of significant inputs.

The fair value of the interest rate swap is estimated based on the present value of the difference between expected cash flows calculated at

,ontracted interest rates and the expected cash flows at current market interest rates using observable benchmarks for London Interbank

red Rate for-ward rates at the end of the period. The fair value is then compared to a valuation received from an independent third-party. See

8, "Line of Credit Facility."

Due to variable interest rates, the carrying value of outstanding borrowings under the Company's line of credit approximates its fair value.

During the six months ended April 30, 2012, the Company had no transfers of assets or liabilities between any of the above hier,-

S.
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;. Segment Information

During the three months ended January 31, 2012, the Company changed the name of its Engineering segment to Facility Solutions to better
riect the variety of end-to-end integrated facility services, building operation and maintenance, and bundled energy solution services provided
its clients. The Company is organized into four reportable operating segments, Janitorial, Facility Solutions, Parking and Security, which are
ramarized as follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
April 30, April 30,

(in thousands) 2012 3.011 2012 2011
e oues

Janitorial 5	 -1!7 590,254 ;1,18-?,060
f l acihty Solutiilw, 2'9,197 4 421,845
Paarkiiig 152,680 156,127 3106,130 308,993
Set, iir w 88110h) !(4,138 0~(1,872 172,894
Corporatc anal other (323) 367 (83) 660

1.(157,244 1.060,083 13 i 029 $2:081)_'52

Operating profit
Jawlilrial Il	 33. P 1 S	 34,934 (.4,002 S	 64,798
Facility Softaiors 6,30: 6,842 12,746 14,292
Pa d< i rig 6.092 4,894 10.842 9,628
Security 1,012 897 1,857 2,198
Corporate and offier _X	 16) 2 1 (52,788) (47, SO

Operating profit 18,863 26,499 36,659 43,415
Othcr-tKiii temp(liorIv impaitment credit lo sses on aucii,,il

rbk" ',ccujjt l l 	 113 1313:
lncoii-.e from unconsolivated affidiates. iiet 1'>01 832 -,633 i,619
1111crC.'st expense (2,44 t) -1	 , 17) (.;,275 i (8363)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 17,610 23,014 $	 35,704 36,671

'Most Corporate expenses are not allocated. Such expenses generally include current actuarial developments of self-insurance reserves
wing to claims incurred in prior years, certain legal costs and settlements, certain information technology costs, share-based compensation
;ts, branding initiative costs, direct acquisition costs, severance costs associated with acquisitions, and certain chief executive officer and other
ance and human resource department costs.

On May 1, 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired the businesses and substantially all the assets of TEGG Corporation
CurrentSAFE Corporation, both Delaware corporations ("TEGG and CurrentSAFE"), pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement (the "Asset

-chase Agreement") with TEGG and CurrentSAFE and the members and shareholders of TEGG and CurrentSAFE, dated as of May 1, 2012.
GG and CurrentSAFE are U.S.-based, privately-held corporations engaged in the business of selling franchises and granting licenses to use
it proprietary systems to deliver comprehensive electrical service and preventive and predictive maintenance solutions to commercial and
ustrial facilities, in the case of TEGG, and residences, in the case of CurrentSAFE. The acquisition expands the Company's reach, increasing
services network in the commercial, industrial and residential electrical contracting industry.

The acquisition will be accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The purchase price for the acquisition was
,roximately $6.2 million in cash, subject to post-closing adjustments. Approximately 8% of the purchase price is subject to a hold back by the
npany for a period of 24 months as security for the sellers' indemnification obligations under the Asset Purchase Agreement.

Due to the acquisition occurring subsequent to the reporting date, certain required disclosures, such as the preliminary allocation of the
chase price, the determination of goodwill, and acquisition related costs, have been omitted from the Company's Quarterly Report on Form
Q for the quarter ended April 30, 2012 because the initial accounting for the business combination is incomplete as of the filing date. The
npany will not provide pro forma information as the results of operations of this acquisition are not material to the Company's consolidated
tricial statements.

0



)1e of coniclits

;nits of Operations

-ee Months Ended April 30, 2012 vs. Three Months Ended April 30, 2011

Three Months Three Months Increase Increase

(Decrease) (Decrease)

Ended Ended
($ in thousands) Apr!E30,29^12 April - 30, 2011 - %

venues (Uy

sc, ll i ng. {_, Cnfrali all6k ad-n-'wjstrato.-,r,-
164 j('

tfl 5	 0:. . . . . ........... ... 5 f)(16

e ,^oellses _797 0.5%

E; 1 616)

I1_0PI!I1_1I , cnt ci-e-it 1)sscs on

N N/1P

1 , C1 (;W"

Intercst ex-pcnse 4,	 17) 8760 (43.3'M

11C	
I 
tl'l I	 , e 0111111,	 f l w!;O ion^ 1", loj c A(A)

Pro-vis!oil For iiiconne taxes .,5863) Is 814) (2,951) 3

int-olm, fi^ 111 con filmiligopou'; f It ' ll- I,	 41 1 4 'I f iI) 1,4 53)

Loss from discontilluod orien-lioi , s, tut o f iaxes (3 (8) 27

NO iriconic 1.71'1 1,	 IA4

Not Meaningful

Income and Income ftom Continuing Operations

Net income and income from continuing operations in the three months ended April 30, 2012 decreased by $2.5 million to $11.7 million
.21 per diluted share), from $14.2 million ($0.26 per diluted share) in the three months ended April 30, 201 1.

The decrease in net income and income from continuing operations was primarily related to:

$5.1 million of legal expense associated with the settlement of certain legal cases;

a $4.3 million increase in operating payroll and payroll related expenses, including higher federal and state unemployment insurance rates;

a $0.9 million increase in legal fees and other costs associated with an internal investigation into a foreign entity previously affiliated with

a j oint venture; and

$0.8 million of costs associated with the Company's branding initiative;

partially offset by:

a $3.6 million decrease 
in 

selling, general and administrative payroll and payroll related expenses, due to cost control measures;

a $3.0 million decrease in income taxes, primarily related to the decrease in income from continuing operations and certain discrete

employment-based tax credits;

a $1.9 million decrease 
in 

interest expense related to a decrease in average borrowings and average interest rates under the line of credit

facility (the "Facility"); and

a $0.7 million increase in income from unconsolidated affiliates primarily related to the Company's share of gains associated with property

sales completed by one of its investments in a low income housing partnership.

W
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gment Information

.During the three months ended January 31, 2012, the Company changed the name of its Engineering segment to Facility Solutions to better
iect the variety of end-to-end integrated facility services, building operation and maintenance, and bundled energy solution services provided
its clients. The revenues and operating profits for the Company's reportable segments (Janitorial, Facility Solutions, Parking, and Security)
re as follows:

Three Months Three Months Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)

Ended Ended
($ in thousands)- - ---	 — April 30, U012 April 30, 2011 $ %

Jaritorial ; 9`. 	 . ;_, 0.5%
1'iil l	 7tl	 `.f . !1,.	 . 1 (ii i'+ ..;L } , 95ii '^i•	 ;}! (^; !, f I)

2 C	 [!,,t_,)).o

Pa?ltiti, 152,6-8(; 156,127 (3,4-17)

Cot-liorate and: other (323) 367 (690) `IM*
'^. (	 lit / -` 44 qt i	 t1{ti . 0	 N (,t X,9)

Oper2 ling profit
aalltlt la, l k,	 ;	 .•lc;? 34,(,.`4 t i .^• 4(n 14. 1 	 f.•.!I

FacilitySoltltions 6,381 6.842 (461; (6.7)%

Security 1.012 897 115
: orron0c,E1altsJllel ('h^lli=? 1068} (/.o'PS)

Operating profati 13.863 26,4991 (7,636) (28.8)%
ttll;ct	 tIiaji	 tc'iIiOUt1l	 1ibtl)2111"€wnI	 :dIt	 1(?	 t_S	 E¢1:..1lcIitlil

t'olt	 `^l^l!ti ill-	 il;k;s+`fll: c'il	 !It	 tiai l -lifl.l k}^. 13131

Income from ultcon olidatcd aitiliatcs. net 1.501 832 669 80.4%
hilcrt,l expew" ', `.41 3.a	 3171 _
Income from continuing operations before income taxes $	 17,610 $	 23,014 $	 5,404) (23.5)%

Not Meaningful

litorial

Janitorial revenues of $593.4 million during the three months ended April 30, 2012, remained relatively consistent compared to $590.2
lion in the three months ended April 30, 2011. The slight increase was primarily related to an increase in tag work revenue from existing
mts and additional revenue from new clients that exceeded the continuing impact of lost business and contract price compression experienced
fiscal 2011.

Operating profit decreased $1.4 million, or 4.1%, during the three months ended April 30, 2012 compared to the three months ended
ril 30, 2011. Operating profit margin decreased by 0.3% from 5.9% in the three months ended April 30, 2011 to 5.6% in the three months
led April 30, 2012. The decrease was primarily related to the continuing impact of price compressions, increases in operating payroll and
roll related expenses, including higher federal and state unemployment insurance rates, and an increase in legal expenses and subcontractor
ts, partially offset by a reduction in selling, general and administrative expenses due to cost control measures.

^ility Solutions

Facility Solutions revenues decreased $6.6 million, or 2.9%, during the three months ended April 30, 2012 compared to the three months
led April 30, 2011. The decrease was primarily related to the termination of certain U.S. government contracts in Iraq, and losses of client
.tracts that exceeded new business.

Operating profit decreased by $0.5 million, or 6.7%, from $6.9 million in the three months ended April 30, 2011, to $6.4 million in the
;e months ended April 30, 2012. Operating profit margins slightly decreased by 0.1% from 3.0% in the three months ended April 30, 2011 to
Yo in the three months ended April 30, 2012. The slight decrease was primarily related to the unfavorable margin impact as a result of the
nination of certain U.S. government contracts in Iraq, and certain contract losses.

W"



wits of Operations

Months EndedApril,20	 onths EndedApril 30,2011

Increase	 Increase

Six Months Six Months (Decrease)	 (Decrease)
Ended Ended

($ in thousands)	 April 30, 2012 April 30, 2011 $	 %
Revenues	 $2,131,029 $2,089,252 $41; 777	 2.0%

Expenses
Operating 1. ' t	 336 1,X68,b=<<' 45,_`" . r f
Selling, general and administrative 169,184 166,050 3,134 1.9%
Amortization of inu: 10,850 10,959 (109) !12y, - 

Mortal expense 2,094,370 1045,837 48,533 2.4%
Operating 1 , , f) , it 36,659 43,415 (6756) (15.6)" <<

Other-thar-temporary impairment credit losses on auction
rate; security recognizcd in earnings (313) — (313) NM*

Income iiow unconsolidated aiiiiiates, net 4,633 1,619 3,014 NM*
Interest expense ( 5 ,275) (8,363 ) 3( ,088) (36.9)%
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 3 .704 36,671 (967) (16)%
Provision inn• income taxes (' =,317) (14,066) (749) 5.3)%
hlcomc ItR>>^i^ continuing trE^,^rritions '.2.387 22,605 (218) (0.9)""
Loss from r'iscontinueci operations, net c 'tt._es (45) 24) (21) NM *
Net income $	 22,342 $	 22,581

_
(239) (1, l y,

Not Meaningful

Income and Income from Continuing Operations

Net income and income from continuing operations in the six months ended April 30, 2012 decreased by $0.2 million to $22.4 mil'-gin
.41 per diluted share) from $22.6 million ($0.42 per diluted share) in the six months ended April 30, 2011.

The decrease in net income and income from continuing operations was primarily related to:

$5.1 million of legal expense associated with the settlement of certain legal cases;

$4.8 million increase in payroll related expenses associated with higher federal and state unemployment insurance rates;

$2.7 million of legal fees and other costs associated with an internal investigation into a foreign entity previously affiliated with a joint
venture; and

$1.5 million of costs associated with the Company's branding initiative;

partially offset by:

a $4.8 million decrease in transaction costs associated with the Linc Acquisition;

a $3.1 million decrease in interest expense due to a decrease in average borrowings and average interest rates under the Facility;

a $3.0 million increase in income from unconsolidated affiliates primarily related to the Company's share of gains associated with property
sales completed by one of its investments in a low income housing partnership; and

a $2.7 million sales allowance reserve reduction primarily driven by sustained improvements in historical and expected credits on client
receivables which the Company attributes, in part, to its recently enhanced billing systems and related processes.

WS
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gent Information

During the three months ended January 31, 2012, the Company changed the name of its Engineering segment to Facility Solutions to

.t6r reflect the variety of end-to-end integrated facility services, building operation and maintenance, and bundled energy solution services

wided to its clients. The revenues and operating profits for the Company's reportable segments (Janitorial, Facility Solutions, Parking, and

cmi-ity) were as follows:

Increase
Increase

Six Months Six Months (Decrease)
(Decrease)

Ended Ended
(S in thousands),- Apri130, 2012 April 30. 2011 S %

Janitoria l $	 ,t7, 7c 7 $	 (i -^,C)27 0.2%
1':9i V i ile	 ^okitww, 1^,("	 k"

	
', S t4 	 f	 c. 8Z/

Parkin ,-, 300,130 308,QQ1 8 16 (0.9)%
9

Corporate and other (83') 660 NM*

operatin g profit

o -U lu, (4

Facility SOIL16011S 12,746 4,292 (1,546) (10.8)%

Securitv 1.8 5 7 2.198 14 1 (15.5)% 

..... . 	 . ......
OperaVag profit 36.659 43,415 (6,7 5 6) (15.6)%

q I I	 t 1),	 I'l-, 0. 11	 1

(31.+f Z!	 `I ) NIN I

Income fi-oni unconsolidated affilmtcs. net 4.633, .6 1 -1) 3,, NVI
(5 Zf (3 0o",

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 35,704 36,671 L_L967) (2.6)%

Not Meaningful

litorial

Janitorial revenues of $1,187.8 million during the six months ended April 30, 2012, remained relatively consistent compared to

184.9 million in the six months ended April 30, 201 1. The slight increase was primarily related to an increase in tag work and a reduction in

sales allowance reserve, primarily driven by sustained improvements in historical and expected credits on client receivables, partially offset

the continuing impact of lost business and contract price compression experienced in fiscal 2011 that exceeded additional revenue from new

,nts.

Operating profit decreased $0.8 million, or 1.2%, during the six months ended April 30, 2012 compared to the six months ended

ril 30, 201 1. Operating profit margins slightly decreased by 0.1% from 5.5% in the six months ended April 30, 2011 to 5.4% in the six months

led April 30, 2012. The decrease was primarily related to the continuing impact of price compressions, increases in operating payroll and

,roll related expenses, including higher federal and state unemployment insurance rates, and an increase in legal expenses and subcontractor

ts, partially offset by a reduction in the sales allowance reserve, and lower selling, general and administrative expenses due to cost control

asures.
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ABM _ warking Services currently operates the
following airport parking facilities that are
similar in size and scope to the Port's facilities:

McCarren Las Vegas international
Airport — valet parking

Orlando International Airport — parking
management & valet parking

Minneapolis — St. Paul International
Airport - parking management & valet
parking

N"ashington — Dulles International
Airport — parking management & va -,)
parking

Honolulu International Airport — parking
management, valet parking & ground
transportation management

Tampa International Airport — parking
management, valet parking and public
shuttle

St. Louis — Lambert International Airport
- parking management and public shuttle

Oakland International Airport — parking
management



Need your receipt?
?».2»>a print out your receipt from your
account activity page at your convenience.

Zip In Zoom Out and Earn Points While
Doing It
The Park Perk , g «> is a better way to
earn free airport parking. It was designed with
<ou, the air traveler, in mind. Simply register for



program as well that gives discounted parking

to ©l travelers who work for participating

corporations and utilize their corporate credi^

card.



ŵ ayment Card Industry Data Security Standa

IPCl/DSS).

Trustwave and its TrustKeeper Compliance

Validat ion Service have been accredited by all

of the major card associations' data security

programs including :

JCB - Fully supports the PC I DSM

mandate and TrustKeeper in support

that mandate.	 I



The following procedures will be utilized in the
creation of any website:

a. Strong encryption methods must MT

used to store the payment data. The]

improvements, as well as create entirely new
features and products.

In addition to helping our customers with
programming, weblinks and minor tweaks an,*
changes to their own websites, ABM has
recently developed the following websites:

AMD41 11D 'VY-bbsite which allows our
customers to download statements and
reports electronically, reducing the amount
of paper waste that is created every month.

- Electronic billing website which allows
monthly parkers; to create an account,
make changes / add and delete parkers
from their account and make payments on-
line.

On-line Airport Parking Reservation websft
that allows parkers to reserve their parking
space during busy holidays peak times.

2. All code must be reviewed by a senior-le\W
developer who did not take part in writin-g
the reviewed code.

a. Documentation of code reviews must be
kept.

b. Code reviews need to happen before
code is released to production.

3. All test data must be removed from the
database when it is released to production.

4. Sensitive data must be removed from the
database when data is moved from
production to a stage or development
environment.

When the site is released to production, a
daily Hackersafe scan of the site must be
created.



.	 .. . . ... .....

*This data will only need to • encrypted if the
full card number is also stored.
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In this marketing plan we will show signage to be placed within the airport to

inform our customer's about their parking options. We have documented

locations that will help re-invent parking within the airport.
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For a detailed description of ABM Parking
Services' Employee Management Programs,
please see Tab F Proposal, Sub Tab 2
Management Approach, Section B of this
proposal.
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e're very happy to welcome you to the ABM Family of
Services. You have joined an organization that has
established an outstanding reputation for quality service
and products. Credit for this goes to every employee.

We hope that you, too, will find satisfaction and take pride in your
work here.

This Handbook is intended to help you get acquainted with
your Company's employment guidelines, policies and procedures. We
hope that it will serve as a useful reference document throughout your
employment. These guidelines, policies and procedures apply to all
employees unless individual employment contracts or collective
bargaining agreements provide otherwise.

From time to time, the information included in our Employee
Handbook may change. New guidelines, policies and procedures will
be announced in bulletins, memos or other Company publications.
You should keep. copies of these. When it becomes necessary, we'll
update this entire Handbook and you'll receive a new copy.
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CONDITWMS Or -,',APLC',­fAENT

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT	 ­,JCY

li_, Company is apt
	
empi	 ortw ',. employer. The

Company will not discfiminai^ agn^ nst qualified applicants or

employees with respect to any te.MF- 	 1--n.dilio► s ef employment

based on race, color, national o6 l, 	 ^:;Iccstrv, ,_eoder, sexual

orientafio;;, age, religion, creed, physi,. 0 r- mentOJi c,ahifity, marital
Status O^L	

^r characteristic , 	 enI	 I outer	 by state c^ ',:ydenI law or

local ow f-­mcc,,

When necessary, the Company	 Tv,,asonably accommodate

employees mid applicants with 	 the person is otherwise

qualified to safety perform all of 	 ^.,-:,>entlal functions of the

position.

AT-WILL .:%'WRPLOYMENT

You are fret,, to	 your employment whh, the Con , -Iny at any

time, with or	 a reason, awl the Coalpally I	 right to

terminate your er liplovinent at any time, with or wif, tson

unless prohibited 7)y 7 a%: or written contract. Although tl Company

may choose to lemri! :: Ile ernpioyment, for cause, ca►ise is not required.
This is called '"at-wit:" unployment,

No one other than the President of the Company has the authority to

alter this policy of "at-will" employment, Further, any such change

of policy must he in writing, and si gned by the president.

The Company reserves the 6ght to ►nake lawful changes in its term.,;
and conditions of employ,nc y ! § Nothing in this Handbook should be

read as contractually	 that right or its guaranteeing

employment for any specific 	 or period of time,

CONOITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

All offers of employment are contingent on verification of your right

to work in the United States, as required by the Immigration Reform

& Control Act of 1986. Upon receiving a condiLional offer of

employment, you will be asked to provide: cri gi 1iai dory m,,t_­v;

verifying your right to work and to 
s
ign a vefificv,_wv, foml evq ,, "", ed

by federal law. If you cannot verify your right to work in th, , Ur'! ied

States, the Company may be obligated 
to 

revoke your employment.

New employees are "introductory employees." During this period,

you will have an opportunity to learn your new position and see

whether you enjoy your employment here. The Company will use

this period to determine whether you a
r
e able to meet its expectations.

Upon completion of this period, the- Company will review your

performance.

Corripletion of this introductory period does not entitle you to remain

employed by the Company for any definite period of time. After

completion of this period, eligible employees may 
be 

eligible for

bents described in this Handbook.

There are five types of employees at the Company. Your

employment status is one of the foll, )V r je^^:

(1) Introductoq Empkyee - employes, who have not yet completed

the "introductory period";

(07104)	
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CONDITIONS OF EMPL^^Y^MIENT

(2	 Fv^ 'J	 or	
pi)

en,pl(r ,	 who art,	the saiaty may be coioveried to

an hot, y rate. The:;z cwplt	 r not in a temporary state s and are

regularly scheduled to worts. t' Company's full-time schedule.

(3) Reguit2r[',,irt-*ritizeEinp4yee (exempt ot- non-t nipt) -employees

who are salaried, although the salary may be converted to an hourly

rate. These employees ate not 	 to a temporary staw,= and are

scheduled to work-	 '0,.im the Company's full-,ilm, ,,,,ork

1-h,_--dule. Regular part-time	 working less than `0

weekly are not general 14,, 	 i l-1 i;f, for Company benefits.

(4) Temporary	 - e , l=,Anyr.cs who are hired as interim

replacements to s,-ppi^.-mcnt the workforce or to assist in

the completion of a specs .5c prqjcrt. Employment assignments in this

category are of a limited duration. Temporary employees, whether

fui l -time or part-time. are generally not eligible for Company

(5) "fourky Employee - employees who may or may not be on a

regular schedule and are paid by the hour only for the hours they

woit'. .These jobs atay be "'on call" or restricted in schedule. Hourly

employees generally are not eligible for Company benefits.

Un)n Employees may fall into an
y
 one of the above

and an, members of 
an 

independent labor union whose terms and

conditions of employment are covered by a collective bar seining

agreement between the Company and that union.

CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

The employment of relatives or close friends in the same  area of an

organization may cause serious conflicts and problems with favori0sin

and employee morale. Therefore, any hire, transfer, or ptocw)tiv^

involving a relative by blood or marriage, or co-habitant, J any

executive or manager of the Company requires prior written approval

of an operating subsidiary senior vice president or corporate vice

president. For purposes of this policy, relatives means a person's

spouse, parents, children, grandchildren, siblings, mothers-in-law and

fathers-in-law, sons and daughters-in-law, brothers and

aunts and uncles and the spouses of aunts and uncles, [the eh,l.sen c.^

aunts and unclesJ and anyone who shares the employee's home.

.Inpkiyees have a duty to bring such relationships to the attention of

Jwir human re
s
ources representative.

In addition, no relative of 
an 

employee shall be employed by the

Company in any position where either of them is subject to any

supervision, direction or review by the other, directly or through another

person® with respect to any work activity, compensation 
or 

financial

transactions or recd-dy, wilhoul pt or written app l-oval of A&VI

Indicytrie.v' Presitien; & Chief Exeentive Oyrcer. ind AB;4 !4aX!rie.V'

Senior Vice President of Himuen Resource.v or ARM, Vice

Provident ,of Intern? Hardie. This policy also appl" ,, s to employees in

position-, which have access to Company propriemry

sensitive information that may affect or influen;,e emp)vmcot

conditions in any matmer. It would apply, for

employee in a financial or lituran ri.-iource% role. no rkltive

by blood or marriage, or co-habiumt can be employeti ioa a 1),,, :reign

where the roles of the individuais ., whtn taken together, would cause

a weakness in internal eonirolq.

In all cases where a personal relationship exists and where a conflict

or the potential for conflict arises, whether or not a supervisory

relationship 
is 

involved, the parties may be separated by reassignment

or terminated from employment.

4	 (07/04)



CONDITIONS OF EMPUC '^IAENT

11 an employee manies	 to sh, ,gre ­ household with another
employee and they work	 samo- 6 ,,;r moPl rat report to the same

immediate supervisor, or if hisfh-r represents a security

risk, internal control issue, or creates a p tai c­)0t 0 conflict of interest,

the employees may select between themselw., .,; which will transfer or

be terminated subject to approval by ADA�'	 Senior Vice

President of Human Resources. The Company will make reasonable

efforts to provide transfer opportunities so that employment of both

employecs, may be continued with the ABM organization.

The for conflicts also exists with respect to the hire, transfer

or promotioa of any employee r0ated by blood or Marriage to an

employe,,;^i pr
i
ncipal of any client, customer, independent contractor

or vendor of the Company and requires the sa mt, t, 4,,jels- , a ppmvaal

outlined above. Any hiring involvin- a fortner professional employee

of the Company's independent auditor, a clo
s
e relative of as professional

employee of the Company's independent auditor, or relat i ve of a

member of the Company's Board of Directors req;tires flee approval

qj ABU Indi4vtries' General Counsel 	 Fos L%urposes of this

auditor	 -!-r;e,a^,^qve Mim, a r6ativesunder

p( .,v other than 6 a c;)Idl­_t,	 av? urckn

WAiL^^4mil

The Company keeps a personnel file on each emplo yee. The contents

i. your file, except for letters of -Cference and other cc;i:^fidemial
are open for your inspection at rva mrahle times 2:-.d at

n ),-table intervals at your request. You ma ono, 	 Of

s	 irrients in the file that yoga 	 previously

Any changes 
in 

your personal data, such as ido mss and phone

number, must be reported to your local Human

Rerresentative, in evfiting, so that the Corn party records

1-E• t.,. ck-te. If you are: c;nrolled in any Company lwn!b a)r vE:Ifnm

plans, you irar.,it also notify the Compwiy, in w0` z ^, cA*

0-ri,5ges in marital status or number of de,,.,,,.1;1o.­,a ,.

CONDITIONS Or EMPLOYMENT

It is Company policy that no personnel or n^adical Mies be r6,_-rased to

outsiders or unauthorized Company personnel without the written

consent of the employee. Exceptions are made only when required

under legal order or as required by government administrative

regulations.

ALU^U
The Company respects your individual privacy. However, you should

not anticipate an expectation of privacy with respect to your work-

related conduct, including, but not limited to the u
s
e of Company-

owned furniture, equipment or supplies. Company stationery, desks,

telephones, voice mail, facsimile machine
s
, copiers, e-mail, software

and computer network. systems are for business purposes only and may

be accessed by management at any time. Therefore, you should practice

professional discretion when using Company-owned propert
y
 or com-

munication systems.

The Company has adopted as program to employ and advance persons

who are- a) individuals with a disability b) war veterans or c) disabled

veterans. In order to make this program succeed we ask that you

identify yourself if you qualify under this program. It is completely

voluntary and you will not be disciplined or refused employment if

you do not wish to provide this information.

The Company wilt' not use polygraph tests to randomly test

employees, If polygraph testing is. used as part of an ongoing

investigation of workplace theft or other incidents causing economic

loss or injury to the Cornpmy, the Compan
y
 will conduct the testing

in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Employee

Polygl•aph Protection Act of 1989.el

(07104)	
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COMPENSATION

COMPANY CO

Eve; , company ernployee is responsible for ensuring the Company's

communications systems are usea ' properly and it :,m. ,,)fdance with
this policy. Companya_qephoneS, fa,:Irqjm. machines,

copiers, voice-mail, e-mail, Ufa vn-"e, and coml ,z Wr nWW10%t systems

are for bu
s
iness purposes only, Additionally:

th- Tighl,

Y

crit on of

are corral	 °w with this or any other Company

2.	 No roes-, -ii	 or	 should be transmitted i hr4 3.i din

any C4 A	 c( uni ' -4 is system without a LZ10dale

business pi	 )se.

1	 ne prov--', of the Company's Shit 	 nnF policy (page

23) ftil ! as -	 ) all communicatio=,,

4,	 No corn	 ',,- ',l be retrieved, ;,:3ovae ,_	 111,"t

may co isflone inf, lid .' tostile or v tee ,JV,,a

based on	 der, race, ce, color, religion, ^-,ation.

sextf	 i-	 : ' :n Or disability. The Co pipany',s policy

asgairst cx	 and ooh r harassment applics fully

if) all comp,	 communicatigon , ; stems and any violation of

that s c	 is grounds for di g cic, w up to and including
term--,;

S.	 All 
eleCtj r,_ i ic and teleephon c communication systems and all

communications am.	 transmitted Illy, -eived

from, or stored in zh%r: e ysieins, as well AF p	 ^, of

code.,; utilized to ac ,_--ess such

information, are the property of theCompany.

Management reserves the right to assign work schedules to

accommodate business conditions, and you may be required to adjust

your schedule accordingly. The regular workweek will not exceed 40

hours, and regular working hours generally tvill not exceed 8 
hours

per day within any consecutive 24-hour period,

LJ_V^l

In most cases, employees will be paid at least twice monthly. If a

regularly scheduled payday falls on a weekend or scheduled holiday,

paychecks will be distributed on the list regular workday before the

holiday or weekend.

Some employees are exempt from the overtime pay requirements of

the law, "Exempt" employees are paid a salary and are in executive,

administrative, sales or professional positions.

Nionexempt employees are paid either a salary or on an hourly basis,

a ndleceive overtime, pay for hours worked in excess of 40 hour.,; per

week. A number of states have more restrictive laws regarding the

number of hours which may he worked in a day.

When operating requirements or other needs cannot be met during

regular working hours, you may be expected to work overtime,

(07/04)	
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Three (3) absence5* in a

Six (6) month period

Four (4) absences* in a
Six (6) month period

More than four (4) absences",
In a six (6) month period

*see definition of "absence" above

MOZEMMEW,

Formal WarningL,

Probation or
Termination

CGAAW--X!5A,nw,!

If you work over tune, you will be paid at a 1--A : of 141'2 times your
regular rate for all hours worked greater than the daily maximum for
your state or over 40 hours per week.

Overtime pay is based on actual time worked. Time off for sick
leave, vacation leave or any leave of absence will not be considered
hours worked for the purpose of calculating overtime hours.

Approval to Work Overtime

Overtime, is well as any time in excess of your regular work
schedule, must be authorized in advance by your Supervisor. If you
work overtime without receiving prior authorization, you may be
sobject to disciplinary act i cni tip to and including termination.

If you are a non-exempt employee, you may be entitled to rest
periods, during your work period. Rest periods avid meal periods may
not be combined or used to leave work early. Additionally, you may
receivt at least one-half hour time off as a meal period. Your

sche=%dc­, ir-al and break periods.

COMPENSATION

Failure to do so is ca; -,,e for disci0nary action and may be caulz f9r

denial of absence pay.

When you call to inform the Company of an unexpected absence or
late arrival, ask for your Supervisor directly. Notifying the
s-witchboa, rd operator or another employee is not sufficient. If your
.Supervisor is not available when you call, you may leave the
information with another supervisor or manager.

Excessive absences, and tardiness will lead to discipline, up to and
including di scharge. An absence is defined as failure to report for or
remain at work cis sehedide& this includes arriving late and leaving
early. Multiple consecutive days off work for the same reason shall
constitute a single absence.

Absence and tardiness are considered exces sive if frequent or show a
pattern. The following are general guidelines * far unacceptable
attendance:

Guidelines - Excessive Absenteeism

GARVI ENTSI

If the Company receives a court order to garnish your wages, we
must comply with that order, A garnishment will reduce your take-
home pay.

P61*"'TUALITY AND ATTENDANCE

Regular and punctual invendance is ,.in essential function of your job.
Unless you are unable to provide advance notice, you must notify
your immediate Supervisor of absences as soon as possible.

(074k)	
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PAID TIME OFF

All holidays to be observed shall be determined in advance by the

Company's senior management, subject to the guidelines established

by ABM.

11

747HOUT NOTICE (JC^ A-BANDONIMEiml)

Absence 'kom work for three consecutive c:3 y	 ,hout notifying your

Supervisor will be considered a voluntary

COMPANY AND/OR CUSTOMER PRA _1_'rL_11TY

Unless you are informed otherwise by the Company for which you

work, Jury Duty is an unpaid leave of absence, subject to local state

law. Any pay receiv
e
d is subject to 

an 
offset for any "jury pay"

xeceived by the employee. If you are subpoenaed to appear as a

witness in court or as a party to the action (plaintiff or defendant),

you will be granted an unpaid leave. If you are subpoenaed to appear

as a witness for the Company, you will be granted a paid leave.

MILITARY LEAVE

All employees may take a leave of absence to accommodate service

in the Amen  Forces, Military Re
s
erves and National Guard. The

specific terms of the absence and of your rights to reinstatement,

seniority, benefits and compensation after a military leave are

governedverned by law.

In the event your work schedule would prevent you from voting on

Election Day, the Company will give you the necessary time off to

vote (up to a maximum of two hours),

SICK

If you are absent from work due to a non-work related illness or

injury, you may be eligible for sick pay. In most cases, you will be

required to complete your introductory period before you becomie

eligible for this benefit, if offered. Your Human Resour,_-,.x

Representative can provide you additional information on this

The Company reserves the right to require medical documentativa

substantiating all illness, injury and medical absences.

Excessive absenteeism, whether paid or unpaid, will be cause for

disciplinary action.

12	 (07AW)



^ : N,	 ,,!° TIME

PERSONAL LEAVE

Personal leaves of absence are unpaid and may be 	 at the sole

discretion of managernen , in extraordinary

If you are a parent, guardian or granc . n 	 ving custody of a child

in Kindergarter or grades 1-12 and ii 1,j, , s .necessary to attend a

school je6v i ty, you must notify your Sti; :rvisor as soon as possible

so that altemw c arrangements can be made. Time off will be unpaid

and in coi n ph a 71 --, r, ' " 	it state law.

RELIGIOUS OBSERB --_S

^.`ou may be granted unpaid 	 o1 ^.^ Oi , ;erve religious holidays,

busine
s
s permitting. A wri	 >r such time off must be

submitted at h.-.ast 30 days in 	ante.

AAILY/MEDiWr_%L L LEAVs:

Familylt► ec)ical leave is permitted fn , I	 bb-0i of an employee's

child, or plocenient of a child wi v';	 for adoption or

foster cive., to care for 
an 

employee'.	 td or parent who hats
a serious heaifth condition, or to care f.)r ­ i ermloyee's own serious
health Condit on.

If 
,;()u have been employed for at least 12 months and worked 1,250

 ast 12 months, you may -be eligible to take a
Wav^: up to 12 workweeks in a 12-month period. This

J­ ave is Plid subject to the requirements of the Family and
Medical U-; ­v t Act of 1993 ("FMLA"),

UNPAID TIME OFF

For the purposes of measuring the amount o 	a,: {4,3: a:!31:; 'gar an

FMLA-covered leave, the company will use a "Toffin a` twelve month

calendar, measured backward from the current date. For calculation

purposes, the Company must determine the amount of leave previously

used, if any, by examining your last twelve ( 1 2) months of attendance.

This twelve-month calendar moves forward as the FMLA leave is spent.

It you are applying for a medical leave for yourself, you must

submit a written certification from your treating physician which

contains the following information.,

(1)The date on which your disability began or will begin,

(2)The probable duration of your condition; and

(3)A statement that, due to your serious health condition,. you am (or

will be) unable to perform the functions of your position.

You may 
be 

required to first utilize your sick. !aave benefits in the

event of your own "serious medical condition." or your accrued

vacation for such tiiw off.

If you are applying for a leave to care for your child, spouse, or

parent who has a serious health condition, you must submit a written

certification signed by the treating physician that includes, the

following information:

(1)The date on which the serious health condition began,-

(2)The probable duration of the condition-,

(3) An estimate of the amount of time that the health care provider

believes you need to take in order to care for your child, parent or

spouse; and

(4) A statement that the serious health condition warrants the

participation of a family member to provide care during a period

of treatment or supervision of your child, parent, or spouse.

You may be required to first utilize your accrued vacation benefits for

such time off.

13	 (417/04)	
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1APAo 11 ME OFF

If for. x	 ­ st provide a 30-day advance	 nvvice

Of Y()L-	 W .a k", a family/niedical leave. If not fore.^"able,

written noti tr!u,:	 provided as soon as practicable within 15

days.

The Company will then provide you with a nofi( lt- 4 7 ur rightsp	 n

and obligations as soon as practicable	 two days)

after you give notice for the leave.

IIf the request is for a foave and the Company questions

the validity of the medi. a] c-IiVi(ation, the Company can require

a second medical opinion at Vic Company's expense.

If you rett I 

-

ir family/medical leave in a timely manner,

you will be re` irned to the same or similar position with

equivalent terms and conditions of employment, including pay

and benefits.

So rne states haw', more restrictive laws for pregnancy related

disabilities. Contact your Human Resource Representative for

information.

C,'OMPANY RULES

it

It is not possible to provide employees with a complete list of every
possible cause that will, like unsatisfactory performance, result in

disciplinary action, including discharge. However, in order to give

you some guidance, examples of unacceptable conduct are listed

below. You should be aware that conduct that is not listed below, but

that is unprofessional or potentially embarrassing, , adversely affects

or is otherwise detrimental to the Company's interests, or the interests

of our employees, customers, or the public at large, may also result in

disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination.

Inclusion of the following list does not iiniit or diminish the

Company's policy of "at-will" employment.

1,	 Inefficiency or failure to perform job duties satisfactorily.

2. Falsification of any Company record.

3. Theft, willful damage or unauthorized removal or use of

Company, employee, or customer property, equipment, records

or information.

4. Excessive tardiness.

5. Excessive absences.

&	 Unauthorized absence or failure to promptly notify the

Company of intended absence.

7,	 Failure to comply with in
structions. of a supervisor or manager.

1s	 (07104)	
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COMPANY'RULES	 COMPANY RULES

8, Deliberate unsatisfactory work or nej,	 I& Conviction of, or pleading 
guilty 

to or admission of a criminal,

offense involving dishonesty, violence, illegal drugs or moral

9. Wasting time, loitering, sleeping 0I.-	 -k hours or leaving	 turpitude.

the workplace wiffiout

1% Obtaining employment on the basis of false or misleading

10. Failing to keen	 ant':	 t;!	 clean, creating	 information, or a material omission of information.

unsafe conditions or defacing Company or a customer's

Property.	 20. Having an interest in or engaging in activities in direct or

indirect competition with the Company or any of its affiliates as

1. Violation of safety, health or security rules. 	 an employee, partner, consultant or owner.

12, Personal or unauthorized rase of Company material, time or 21. Unauthorized disclosure or misuse of the Company's

equipment confidential information, including, but not limited to customer

lists, trade secrets or other proprietary information.

13. Careless or negligent use of Company vehicle, equipment or

other property. 21 Unattthori7ed duplication or use of keys that lock or secure

Company or customer premises or property.

1.4. Insubordination to a supervisor or manager such as direct

confrontation or profanity, 23. Possession of firearms, explosives or any item intended for use

as a weapon on Company or customer premises.

15. Possession, distribution, sale, transW w- misuse of alcohol,

prescription drat o^ or 71 lc-I! drup	ti,e .^;orkplace, while on 24, Soliciting funds or distributing written or printed material

duty, or while 	 volricles or during working hours without authorization from the Company.

equipment.

25. Creating discord or harassing any other employee, customer or

16, Being under the influence of alcohol, or other drugs while at visitor.

work, or possessing or using alcohol or other drugs on

Company premises. 26. Discrimination against or harassment of any applicant,

employee, visitor or customer on the basis of gender, me,

17^ Creating, encouraging or participating in disorder or violence, national origin, color, religion, age, disability, sexual

righting or threatening bodily harm, orientation or marital status.

27. Conduct inappropriate in a business environment.

17	 (07;04)	 ill 	(07/04)



COMPANY•RULES
COA,PANY . ft ,ES

28, Any flagrantly 	 or joss misconduct.

29. Misuse of Compac,^, -)r 	 as:; funds.

30. Comr-!9-7 `)n of (-r attempt iv cnklliJi any criminal act

the Civir	-, its customers, 	 or property, ?rxl,iling,

but not li ad to fraud, theft, van&.1isin or extortion,

31. Failure to cooperate with a request to search Company or

customer propcoy.

32. Dress or grooming inapprupriate in a business environment.

Company policy requires all emplo
y
ees to cooperate fully In any

internal investigation concerning the workplace.

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AND DRU(: 3

By policy, fit^_ ,, I Corr stric.tly prohibits employees from being

under the i"f-uence. I *. , ,:.ig in, possessing, providing, producing,

buying, sellio.- ­r u :`ng Ccoholic beverages, unprescribed or illegal
drugs at any time on Company premise-, or in Company vehicles.

Limited consumption of alcob,)Jic beverages at certain Company-

sponsored events held on property is allowed ve,th

prior written approvc'l V' w C'mapany's senior man v erre!--

Consumption of alcotoili c-	 is also Permitted  t

Company -sponsored ev ,_, ,	 premises with prii-) 

approval of the Compar , y `s sen r nlwagi_ s-nent.

The Company is not liable for occupe i i onal injury or illness payments

for any injuries arising out of voluntary participation in any off-duty

recreational, social or ailik:tic ac(ivii y not cons , Aftudr.- pail of the

employee's work-related duties.

"Under the influence" is defined as being unable to perform work in

a safe and productive manner; being in a physical or mental condition

that creates a risk to the safety and well-being of the affected

employee, other employees, the general public or Company property;

and/or having any detectable level, in excess of a (race, of alcohol,

unprescribed drugs or illegal drugs in the body.

An employee who is involved with on-the-Job illegal drug use,

possession or sale is in violation of CDmpai-, , y policy. Off-the-job use,

posse
ssion or sale of unprescribed or ille gi°l c!mgs which has an

adverse affect on the Company's oilier employees, the

general public or the Company's reputation or image is also

considered a violation of this policy. In deciding what action to take,

the Company will take into consideration the nature of the conduct

and the employee's present assignment and record with the Company.

Additionally, any employee who is taking prescriptiv,)^, or no"-

prescription

'

drugs or medication which may adversely the

employee's ability to work in a safe or productive manner is

encouraged to report the use of this vicdica0n,i to his or her

supervisor, or, if this is not possible, to the )ffi"^ manager beforte

beginning work or entering any Company or customer facility. This

includes drugs which are known or advertised as possibly affmting

judgment, coordination or other senses, including those which may

cause drowsiness or dizziness. Management, after obtaining medical

advice, will then determine if any work restrictions will be necessary.

Consent to drug or alcohol testing, when requested by the Company,

is a condition of continued employment with the Company and

refusal to comply is insubordination.

(07,104)
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COMPANY RULES
COMPANY RULES

Violation,, of i pl iz^ pai i, inclu6ing refusal to cuwent to drag; or

alcohol tL-miy-w, w '-E t: ,.":,4 in immediate suspension of the employee

pending an investigw on. The Compmy vill then make a

determination conceniixig the apprapiiiate (`Lsc,'Tiine, tip to and

including discharge, on the basis of evidence dotim available to the

Company, reasonable inferences which the Company draws from that

evidence, and the employee's refusal to consent to such testing.

F:=VR^ H

The Company is	 as work environment that is

free of discritnim-,"'iw s Fs" €;, harassment.  in keeping with this

policy, the Company str ic O L-y  wlibits unlawful harassment of any kind,

including harassment on th,,, basis of r4ce, color., religion, gender, age,

mental or physical disability, medi^ al condition, national origin, marital

status, veteran status, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic

protected under federal or state law or lo cal ordinance. Harassment
may take many forms, but the most common forms include:

Verbal harassment, such as jokes, epithets, slurs, negative

stereotyping and unwelcome remarks about an individual's body,

color, physical characteristics, appearance, or talents, references to

women such as "honey." "doll," or "sweetheart," comments or

questions about a person's sexual practices, and patronizing terms or

remarks;

Pkysi(-al harassment, such as physical inter G

' ,'

, a.mce with normal work,

impeding or bloc`ng movement, 	 ,.•nwelcome physical

contact, staring a a person's body, and 	 intimidating ort,	 g

hostile acts that I 	 to a protected characteristic,

Visual harassinew, such as oLicnsiv or obtscer^ ,.- photofi.,-FPhs,

calendars, posters, cards, cartoons, drawings, gestures, and any

other written material, display of sexually sug-estive or lewd ob cis,4 	 Je

unwelcome personal notes or letters, and any 
other 

written or graphic

material that denigrates or shows hostility o ° aversion toward an

individual because of a protected characteristic, ^flfdudmg Posting or

circulating any such items in the workplace.

There are two distinct categories of sextiif

Quid pro quo sexual harassment occurs when 
an 

individual's

submission to or rejection of unwelcome sexual conduct is used a s a

basis for employment decisions affecting that individual, including

granting of employment benefits;

Hostile environment sexual harassment occurs when unwelcome
sexual conduct unreasonably interferes :with an individual's job

performance or creates art intimidating, hostile or offensive working

environment, even if it does not lead to tangible or economic job

consequences.

Sexual harassment includes harassment of women by men, of men by

women, and same-sex/gender-based harassment.

If you witness unlawful harassment on the job, you are expected

to report it immediately to your supervisor, any other member of

management, or your local Human Resource Representative. It 
is 

the

respotisibility of rfno employee who has been haragsed or otherwise

discriminated against, or who has wittiessed such harasso pent or

discritnihatiot4 to inimediately report cell such conduct to their dirver

supen4svr or to a sets or srupervisor. Furthermore, it 
is 

the

responsibility ref atky supervisor who receives such a report to

21	 (07104)	
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COMPANY RULES
COMPANY RUU^,^^

,;i,;nedia_, Iy 0	 i^.wd i.+ l!,JrHuman

Resourre representative.

The Company's i	 y is I -)	 conduct a thorough,
objective and compk:­ in	 )n o ny T iarassment complaint.

At the conclusion c" i", 	 ""i will attempt to determine

whether unlawfr'	 !v	 occurred. The Company will look

at the conduct and	 110 1, icxt	 vwhich it occurred.

The Compi..iy will, as promptly as possible, corn 	 icate its findings

to the	 and the remedial action (ii vmy) to he taken

to the	 and when appropriate, to otter persons who are

directly cor,^.­,. tied.

If the Company determines that li-r----ment has occurred, the

Company will take remedial action	 . msurate with the severity

of the offense. This action 	 t	 le isciplinary action against

the harasser, up to and 	 dii,	 _•n. Steps will be taken, as

necessary, to prevent as f	 er	 -ass:. mt.

In situations involving col 	 i.1' relationships between employee,

the Company reserves the	 to take whatever action is n1r,

to preserve a hostile-free an I f amassment•free environment.

No wdividual will stiffer any reprisals or reu3,11atk; for repoa'tir.-, zny

	

I	 ^	 I	
^of a	 nient, or for parficipxm,^ i^. _,ny mvevi 3 , . On of

t or perceivet

SOLICM :.Y 3

The Company discourages solicitation of its employees by co-

workers. Such solicitation is only allowed during non-working time

and the non -working time of the person b4 -i- soiitivd. "Noil-

working" time means time during meal periods or breaks and before

or after working hours. The Company prohibits solicitation,

collection, posting or distributing of printed or written materials

anywhere on Company premises by non-employees.

ENGLISH IN THE WORKPLACE

To assure compliance with many state and federal employment notice

requirements, it is expected that all Company employees read and

understand English sufficiently to maintain a safe and lawful work

environment, To the extent practical, management will strive to

provide alternate translations to futther clarify those areas of concern.

A professional appearance is es
s
ential to your job. You are a

representative of the Company, so you must present a clean and

professional image to our customers, employees, management and the

general public. You must practice good grooming and personal

hygiene. You must dress in a uniform, if required, or if not, in a

professional and appropriate manner. If your attire or physical

appearance is inappropriate, you may be required 
to 

leave the

premises until such time as your appearance is appropriate. Consult

your Supervisor if you have questions as to what constitutes

appropriate appearance.

All employees should seek a prompt review of their work-related

problems, When such problems arise, you tire expected to take the

following steps to seek resolution:

23	 (07/04)	
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WORKPLACE SAFETY AND HEALTH
C0COMPANY RULES

First, ^mC& fo your Discuss )iobleln,. you

are having at work with your Supervisor. In most cases, he or she

will be in the best position to help yow

Or, talk to your Supervisor's m-" .,, ager - If you are having troub;c

communicating with your 	 Supervisor, you should :Yiaka, an

appointment with your Super y -v i iiauager and explain 6-ie

problem.

T11 ;ro your b cv.F	Resource representative, AXEMs Hier ;s..

Dep rhr err your union representative - `The Company's

Resources sl 6f or your union representative will work

you and any other people you've asked to have contacted to resolve
the problem.

Salaried and hourly office and sales employees hired after March 11,
1.994 are subject to t he Company's Pre-Dispute Resolution program

and may be subject tc, arbitration of their employment disputes.

The Company is committed to providing all of its employees with a

safe and healthy environment in which to work. The Company

recognizes that a safe and healthy workplace is the tight and the

responsibility of every employee. The Company strongly believes

that "accidents" are preventable if safety is made an integral part of

daily activities. The prevention of work-related injuries is of such

con
s
equence that it will take precedence over any unsafe activity or

condition. ABM's Safety Services Department is available for

consultation on all health and safety matters.

In compliance with the Federal Hazard Communication Standard, the

Company maintains Material Safety Data Sheets ("MSDS") for all

chemicals used in the course of business. These MSDS sheets are

available for review by all employees, as well as their representatives

and physicians.

To prornote the concept of a safe workplace, the Company maintains

an Injury and Illness Prevention Program. This program is available

for your review.

VIOLENCE PREVENTION

Violence or threats of violence against the life, health, well-being,

family or property of others, expre
ss or implied by words, gestures,

symbols, intimidation or coercion, will be regarded as violating the

fundamental rights of the Company to operate its business in a safe

and peaceful manner. The Company has adopted the following

practices to deal with any violence that may occur on its premises,

and to ensure the safety of its employees.

26	 (07104)
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WORKPLACE SAFETY AND HEAL'O'

* Report all of , iolence, whether direct or 1<s soon

as possible ywir Supervisor, or if he or she catinv, ^v r hed,

to any other supervisor or manager. He as specific w, possible.

* Report t_'l	 -- — is individuals or	 to your Supervisor

or to ay , c ,r , pervisor or manager, as soc- as possible,

* Do not put yourself in peril.

* If you hear a violent corurnotion near your work area, do not

investigate or interfere. Telephone 911 immediately!

* Coopc-zte fully with security, law enforcement and medical

i '..1"(WRel that respond to a call for help.

* Let the Company respond to all inquiries from the media about

violence on its premises so that the Company can speak with one

voice.

0 If you are qualified, you may provide first aid to injured persons.

SMOKING

In keeping with the (a^:)mpip%'s	 orovide a safe and healthful
. .1	 k)iwd anywherJ ^ig	 -ohi anywhere within awork environment, s^avr­	 is pi I

Company-owned or Cornpany-leased Ovilding, and in ar ,, , ompany-

owned or Company-leased vehicle. Smokip' is discou--j.-ed ii= any

other vehicle being driven in connectinn cnmpaw business.
Emple-mes who smoke do not receive ay acd i i'fi?ial bi ,,.­ ;,; time or

I 
_- _vial considerations.

• an employee's behavior is grossly inappropriate for the

workplace, as determined by the Human Resources Deparunent

of ADM;

• there is reasonable cause to protect public safety; or

medical clarification is necessary to support a reasonable

accommodation request.

An employee's decision to comply with the request for a fitness-for-

duty examination may affect the determination of whether

disciplinary action should be taken, what type of action may fie taken,

or whether reasonable accommodation should be made.

27	 (07/04)	
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An empb , .'s	 comply will e ,- con iderr,',i 4isil rdinvidon
and, subject to review by 	 Resources Department, may
result in disciplinary action. up w  a.,.: incluftg termination,

All employees must contribute to the Federal Social Security Program
and federal and state income tax withholding. The Company pays a
matching contribution for each employee's Social Security taxes.
The Company requires all employees to complete an IRS-approved
W-4 Form and to provide their Social Security number. Violation or
interference with this policy is corn idcred insubordination and may
be grounds for discipline includin.-I disch,4i7&;.

STATE ;JSABIUTY INSURANCE

Some states require that each employee contribute to a State
Disability Insurance plan. Contributions are made through payroll
deduction. Disability insurance is payable when you cannot work
because of illness or injury that is unrelated to your employment with
the Company.

UNEMPLOYMENTINSURANCE

The Company contributes thousands of dollars each year to each,

State's Unemployment Fund on behalf of its employees.
Unemployment benefits are provided by the state and are available to
employees who have been subject to a layoff, but are usually not
available to employees who have quit voluntarily or have been
terminated for cause.

29	 (07/64)	
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FORK RELATE, ^"' ILL •ESS CoR tWJL;414'Y

An occupational injury or illne
s
s program may cover the cost of a

legitimate occupational injury or illness that results from working for

the Company. Benefits help pay for you., iedical treatment and part

of any income you may lose while rw	 ling. Specific bem >!,""' Le

prescribed by law depending on the ci ',,'.,^.,aislances of eac14 'm'o

be 
assured 

of maximum coverage, each i njury or illness must be

reported immediately to your Supervisor who will promptly file a

claim,

Occupational injury or illness coverage will not apply when your

illness or injury is unrelated to woddr-' fnr the Company or when an
injury arises out of voluntary participafu-„ i ,, an off-duty recreational,

social or athletic activity not constituting a part of your work-related

duties.

OccupafiowI or illness leaves of absence from the Company

will run concurrently with the TWeraf Family and Medical Leave Act

(T MLA") leaves of absence for employees with FMLA-qualifying

health condition&

TERMINATION

7r	
'.

"IR E-71 - -
EMPLOYMENT

Your employment with the Company may he deemed terminated for

any of the following reasons:

• Voluntary resignation,

• Retirement;

• Reorganization within the Company (including, but not limited

to, job elimination);

• Involuntary termination, with or without cause and with or

without notice-,

• Failure to return to work in a timely manner following an

absence;

• Failure to report to work without notice for three (3) consecutive

work days;

• Prolonged disability resulting in 
an 

inability to safety and

satisfactorily perform all the essential functions of your job with

or without reasonable accommodation; or

• Death
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F.^!L*j ^A 2 • 	 1

I acknowledge that I have read and understand the Employee

Handbook, and I accept the terms and conditions of

employment contained therein.

I understand that this Handbook summarizes the Company's

personnel policies and guidelines, and that it is furnished to

one solely for my information. I furf her understand that the

policies and procedures contained in the Handbook are not

intended to create an employmem. coaLvact.

I understand that the Company may modify or rescind any of

its policies, guidelines, benefits, or practices described in the

Handbook at any time, except for its policy of at-will

employment and those policies required by law.

(Employee's Printed Name)

(Employee's Sig- âtm-f

KE
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Integrated	 Processing

 overlooked aspects y!

parking business is the tracking of accounts
receivable 	 purchase
validations, either prepaid or charged, and the



All invoices generated by SCORE 42,«=a«
out by an independent fulfillment house ti
eliminate any possibilities of manipulation and
ensure the proper segregation of duties ar;
maintained.

Our Business Intelligence database is «®b
Cased and we are currently in the process of



would allow access to their properties for the
review of revenue, expenses, and accounts
receivables in our customized dashboard. A
snap shot of the dashboard report is shown
below:

Each of the individualized reports on the
dashboard provides the user with drill down
capabilities to additional documentation
supporting the cumulative Portfolio totals. A
sampling of these reports are:

Monthly Billing and Accounts Receivable
• Selected Month Invoice Register

• Selected Month Aging Totals

• Previous Months Aging Totals

Through the development of the Business
Intelligence database, and the integration of
our proprietary SCORE 4 software, ABIVI
Parking Services leads the parking industry in
reporting technology.
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The Customer Po rtal is a component of ou r

Green Ca re environmental strategy. ABM is

taking severa l co rpo rate wide steps to change

ex ist ing bus iness processes and p rocedures to

become a more Green company.

Thereafter, the system downloads the payro l l

data to the central hub several times per day

for the most accurate and up to date payroll

informa tion. This new system wil l g reatly

reduce the many hours spen t weekly

«alculating payroll hours and reporting thos-e

hours to the payroll department.

The biometric °©y option uses a remote

termina l called WalTe r (Wa ll Term ina l) and it

pe rform s the 4>»»«#d»« »<

A lerts you when an emp loyee is late, is

accumu la ting extra overtime, or if you go

over budget

Asks emp loyees if they had a safe day, so

they can't claim workman's compensation

later in case they get injured outs ide the job

WalTer does not require locations to buy a

computer (as is the case with other

systems)



The ITIinneapolis — St. Paul International Airport
even has a demonstration video on its site to
show how the system works.

This innovative system has won an award from
the International Parking Institute.

ways:
a Via a 1-800 information line
• Though	 the	 MSP	 website

• Via telephone or smart phone text
Hf M

The Smart Drive system has proven to reduce
liability claims and accidents, reduce the cost of



Our state-of-the-art claims t •l

ptarticularly valuablelarge , hig h-traffic

. ocations with a volume

uniqueHere's our	 pro	 •

`— ^L a



® Weather-Related Signaqe	 many
riveSmart TM - Preventing Claims by Avoiding	 customers fly into airports having no idea

Accident

	

	 what the weather and driving conditions
are like. ABM is the only parking provider



m



track potential problem areas or issues for early
troubleshooting.



I w -J k'A V

very positive feedback about content and
execution.

Customer Service Plan in Relation to
Exhibit A

Our programs have been well received and
genuinely appreciated by our staff. Contract
Administrators and other PA personn el have at



parkmg Se; vices
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is the fact that each and every employee is not
merely a cashier or shuttle driver whose sole
responsibility is collecting cash • driving a
vehicle, rather the employees must also serve
as ambassadors of service excellence.
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Please complete the reverse side of this card and mail, email or fax to the
applicable location.
If you choose to email us, please provide the information requested on the
reverse side in your correspondence,

Newark Liberty Intemational Airport JFK International Airport
ABM ParkingServices ABM ParkingServices

Building 105, CTP Building 14, East Wing. 1st Floor
Newark. NJ 07114 Jamaica, NY 11430

Attn: Customer Service Attn: Customer Service

Ph: (973) 718-7267	 Ph: (347) 238-3238
Fax: (973) 961-f^' 	I	 Fax: (347) 238-3252

CTB. Su ite 3925
Flushing, NY 11371

Iffigkopt-vOu'at i

Ph: (347) 468-3936
Fax: (347) 468-3937

=1

??n;

Da re did vou oark?	 Exit Date:	 'tine of Exit:

License Plate #:	 State of Rggstration:

If Appli—Y– !--7	 Tn

Comments

or a^'Lnket Derr mailing this card.A,-)t please includ 	 I, I



b. Plan to Measure Performance to Port's
Customer	 1,i	 ; .

JFK JFK LGA LGA EWR EWR Total Total Total
Passing Failing Passing Failing Passing Failing Shops Passing Failing Passing
Shops Shops Shops Shops Shops Shops Done Shops Shops Average

Jan-11 4 2 6 0 2 1 15 12 3 80%
Feb-11 _ 4 2 5 0 3 1 15 12 3 80%
Mar-11 _	

3
3 6 1 4 0 17 13 4 76%

Apr-11_ 5
0

6 0
2__ 1.

14 13
_	

1 93%
May-11 _	 5 0 _ 6

0 3
0 14 14 0 100%_,

Jun-11 6	 .. _ 0

6
0 4 1 17 16 1 94%_

Jul-11
6_ 0 7

0 6 0 19 19 0 1001/0
Aug-11 7 0 7 0 4 0- 18 18 0 100%
Sep-11 6 0 7 0 4

0
17

-
17	

_
0 100%

Oct-11 _	 6 0 6 0
5_

0 17 17
_	

0 100%
Nov-11  6 -_ 0

6 0 _5
0 17 17 0 100%__

Dec-11
6 _0 6 0 3,_- 1-

16
15

1
94%._.

64 7
74 1

45- 5 196 183 13 93%
Location Total 71 75 50

Location Passing Average 90% 99% 90%

Finally, we continually solicit feedback about
our operation and people from our staff in a
variety of ways.

Employees have access to an "800"
number and suggestion box where they can
report anonymously.

Employees are encouraged to nominate
peer for Employeeo.



Employees are offered time in training 	 current trends to remain the leader in Customer

classes to voice concerns. 	 Care!

Employees are encouraged to advise our

training department of issues or topics they

would like to see covered in an upcoming

seminar.

Employees are encouraged to inform tb^;.

Customer Service Department of incidents

prior to the customer.

We host "Town Hall" type meetings on a

regular basis where employees can openly

and face to face discuss concerns with

management.

Management maintains a general "open

door" policy.

;W ::NJ

ABM Parking Services Awards

c. Minimum Service Standards with

Measurement





Customer Sere &
Training Department
Policies and Prcce..dures 	 I

vw
AA,

9



L

1

a

All Customer Service & Training Managers (CST Managers) have a dual report — to their location

General Manager and the NY/NJ Regional Customer Service J Training Manager,	 I

The CST Managers are expected to address all aspects of "Customer Contact Concerns" in regards to
the Parking Operation:

	

I Daf, _	 _	 __... 	 ] ., ;	
-- --- —	 s:. mate Tima of Exit..

	

c_	 +rr,bar: 	 _.^ , e 	 _	 F si ,	 t,.	 _...w .
:'•ary'')or any r-rest .̀', caro' ref .ind or djtfwf.dT qnl)

ak

All incoming 	#	 and concernshandled	 applicable

Manager are required to research all transactions and print back up documentation from Revenue

Control System to validate a customer's parking as well as, validate any issues with a customer's

[tarking experience.

Each customer inquiry is to be documented with a Customer Service Form.

1



I	 ,.	 errs Information®I
4	 sw=	 ^^us

ftmd

Name:	 Richard 	 Devine Home Phone: 	 (845) 224-4798
Address:	 1402 lyndtw st Way Work Phone:	 (845) 224-4798
Address: E-Mail:
Cty/State/75p:	 Wappingers Falls 	 NY ',12590	 -. Report Date: 	 ',	 311312009. .

Vehicle Information Ticket Information

Plate/State:	 A2K7682	 '.- 	 NY Date Entered;	 12/3112008	 .

Make:	 - lot: P2	 '...	 Time Entered:	 6:33...
Model:
Year: Date Exited:	 1 14 /2009
Color;

tines: 205	
Time Exited:	 6:24	 PM

Transaction

Method Of Payment:	 ...	 E c Pass Refund T	 -ype:	 Cheek Balance Drk4 Waive:
Parking Fee:	 °O.Oti Amami:	 $0.00

,.,,,...^..,^._..
Amount: .. $150.00	

._ ..

Balance Due	 ' Amount:	 $0.00 Request Denial:

Balance Due Rec #: Date: ...5/12/2009 Dom:	
.....

Approved By: Delay	 .. Employee Sales

Nam:	 ^17oflrl Marx	 _....	 - Wrong 1.0t	 __,; EZ Pass Error

Date:	 412//1009 lot Close	 _ Non Revenue

Signature/Date Lost Tcket Credit Card Error

Handicap Miscellaneous

mployee had Fixes with Cdo Revenue E Paass - was directed m # e EmpirYir Sa s dr	 -we corrected.

mpfoyee charged $150

efund Rexluest 409 -08

Name:	 Phone:
Repc9'ted Ey_

Lastnzame:	 Date:

Customer Service Rena.

Maria Vinas

	Out For Approval:	 Date:	 _ 417!2

	Out To Account Payable/R2cewable:	 Date: r5/S/2009

Response St: V , Date:	 S/12/2009



Address'.
— -----------	 ------ -------- -------City:

License PWet:	 State:

Equipment:

Lot--------------------

i Non-Revenue: User#- 	 Company:

1_1113te: J Zip Code:
1- -

Entry Transaction: Lane.

Exit transaction: Lane:

Time in Lot.	 Days Hrs	 Mins
Long Term Rate:

Method of Payment'.N/A	 Balance Due issued

Amount Paid	 Calculated Fee 0.00	 Refund Amount $

I	 Amount $

Patton Is:	 0 Received Copy of Receipt

Request:

RChecked for Prior Refund - No Prior Refund on:	 for

Description of Incident

outconw.

ABM Parking Services Cusforner SeMce:

Date:

Port Authority: 0 APPRovEri El DENIED

Submitted for Approval El Date:

-------- --Response Letter SUN	 0 Data:

Requesi it,

Once all pertinent customer information has been documented, the CST Manager will submit any
requests for a fee adjustment to their PA Contract Administrator (based on location). All customer
issues require a written response from the CST Manager.



Sample Response Refund Letter:

Bt dingVFI';Ue

April 25, 2012

Steve Lester

1200 Gravesend Neck Road, #4A
Brooklyn, NY 11 229

DearMr. Lester:

Ibank you for your correspondence about your recent experience it LaGuardia Airport.

We value each and every customer and 
are 

committed to providing the best sendee

possiblQ.

Let me apologize for any inconvenience you may have expuricnced when acing our

facility, I submitted your request to the Port Aufl)utity of Now York and New Jersey for

review and consideration and they have authorized an adjustment to your parking fee of

March 26. 2012,

Based upon the authorized adjustment, enclosed please find a refund check for $36.00.

We thank you for choosing LaGuardia Airport and look forward to serving your future

travel needs,

Sin	 Icerej)'^

LN, ari, Visas, CPF
Customer Service Manager

ABM Parldug Services
Pbone: 347-468-3936

Fax: 347-468-3937

I Ma

22M^^

CST Managers are expected to maintain all customer information on file as well as input the

informatipon into the Customer Service database/file. All paperwork must be filed by month and

updated with appropriate dates of completion in the access database.



F.ta^ • "	 :.ta-4 [^isxx „e rSPf:{.CL 4.i- 1?TFSekL

Customer's Infer matia

NernG:	 Ria •-.	 -	 Hon:R Phone:	 - ._ :9 Sl	 -_ - -
Add:—	 1-'r]2	 - Y ......_	 Yvprlr Phonpi
Add--
C:tYi +ta:e r'1.iG:	 'aPp:r;9er1F,=1.^-.	 1254!]	 ReAPrt DabC' 	 ..	 3; ^jnpn

Locntbn and •^^-^.: ^^E'_r o matiCnn Tre:. ;:aCt:n:-: p,!',AUth-.t•: T`;:.;:If Fadlltr FnddentD—riptlon!ro—Ms C—tfa e Approval

ael-Klc infenna!t^n	 ^.!.....:i tnform^ticr-:
Pla#cjSt^:^:	 ..ZIP rc32	 :IY

	

_F Ent_"red:	 1 131, ^Oa'
R4adw_t:I	

_ .._.___.	 — -.. E t°r_d:	 6r3:	 :.i•5 ..
Were:	 ' 	 ."	 .__	 C t	 . t " r	

...• 
h i'.^OS

color:	 Lanes:	 a°	 ^	 T	 .:t._d:	 s! 24	 rn•	 i

	

P 11 a ) I.E 105-IFF I F FG-1IF ll!.. IF I -k. II!- II gjIF jj-6 II P 11^11! .11R T! J I IF j I.W IIX II^'ll j	 If+ij]
I f:t.v.e^i_ Ir^r	 lzie	 _a.^ I	 ^i—	 ^.n ► 	 i^^ ► 4 lf > Il >oli>^I	 lei

--
.

On a monthly basis, all customer refunds/waivers are compiled for the PA in our Monthly Deports to
assist in identifying the customer issues at each location.

5



Safety & Sexual Harassment — Working with the Human Resource Dept. the CS
Managers present a Safety and Sexual Harassment course each year to all employees.
Operations Manual Development and Revisions.
Supervisor Certification Test Development and Revisions — All supervisors are requir
to take and pass a certification test as part • their position within the company.

Employee training is a mandatory part • employment within the company and the CST Managers are
to ensure that all participation logs are submitted to the appropriate departments for billing purposes
and maintained in the location Facility Training Log Book.

CST Managers are expected to attend company meetings — at times as just a participant, however, ofteri
zlso will t,?V-e mini)tes for:

CST Manager's oversee the Mystery Shop Program for both PA and APS at their location. They are
responsible to identify/verify the pass/fail Mystery Shops and, when necessary, discipline any
employees of their failed shops. To discipline an employee, reviews of employee files are necessary to
ensure the discipline is in accordance with ABM's progressive disciplinary protocol.

For each employee who passes a PA and/or ASP Mystery Shop, CST Managers will prepare and
distribute personalized recognition notices as well as update company bulletin boards with Mystery
Shopper information. Mystery Shop information is prepared for the company monthly report by the
CST Manager.



• Holiday Snack.
• Various miscellaneous events — i.e., Airport Day, Career Day.

Working with the Human Resource Department, the CST Managers mail birthday cards each month to
any employee celebrating a birthday as part of the Birthday Card Program.

The Incentive Program is a multi-level employee recognition program. This program marks positive
performance with monetary rewards paid out through the second payroll quarterly for all qualifying
employees. CST Managers must work closely with other department managers in order to track all
performance indicators such as attendance, write ups and mandatory meeting/training attendance.
Mystery Shopper scores are rewarded through the Incentive Program and the records are maintained by
the CST Managers.

0



THE POUAUTHORM OF NY& NJ ABM
John F. Kennedy LaGuardia Newark Liberty Stewart
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT	 AIRPORT	 INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT	 INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT	 Parking Services
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ABM Parking Services

Shuttle Advertising

ABM Parking Services

works with	 advertising k/

agencies such as Airport

Target Media to generate
is

additional income for our

airport clients by using their shuttle fleets for

advertising. Advertising can be relatively small

by using "J" rail advertising cards on the shuttle

interiors or can go more hi — tech by installing

advertising monitors

with scrolling ads and

videos.	 Just four

interior 	ads	 can

generate $50 pe r
All kw^&i4.0 month, per vehicle .

Agai n, the Parking Locator System can be

installed at no cost to the Authority, and it will

be subject to approval	 actually pay a percentage of the advertising

by the Airport before	 income back to the Authority.

they are installed.



THE PORTAUTMO M OF DIY J	 ,
John F. Kennedy LaGuardia Newark Liberty Stewart ' 	 Parking Services
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT	 AIRPORT	 INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT	 INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT	 O
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Just last month, the U.S. Travel Association reported that for the first time in the past five years, the
business travel category exhibited signs of growth.

Percentage Traveling for Business Purposes
March 2007 — April 2012

60

50

42
40

30	
24	 24

20

Apr 07	 Apr 08	 Apr D9	 Apr 10	 Apr 11	 Apr 12

5-- MPAGY GWballtl.S. Trawl Assoewdin.



The same study documents that the average number of trips taken by adults in the U.S. for
business is also on the rise. Currently the average is six times per year.

At the Austin — Bergstrom International Airport, the same campaign that leveraged paid advertising
spots for an additional $20,000+ in value-added announcements, resulted in a 455% increase in
their ParkPerk program enrollments compared to the previous year. The media mix included radio
and on-line travel verticals employing demographic and geographic targeting. Outdoor and in-
terminal ad units were utilized throughout the year for a sustained effort.



reliable

The team is flexible and designed to be responsive to meet the expressed needs and directions
provided by the Authority while providing expert counsel and external sounding boards.

Other recommendations include a statistically 
group study in order to document customer, competitive

Geographic

Verifiable data available through existing research studies reveals a number of interesting statistics
with bearing on the preliminary development of the target market for airport parking in the New York
region.



9

For purposes of this proposal, advertising and marketing efforts will focus on the standard market
definition for the New York Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) as the geographic boundary for
three out of the four PANYNJ parking operations: Newark Liberty International Airport, John F.
Kennedy International Airport, and LaGuardia Airports.

- - - - - - - . . . . . . 	 - - - -- -- -- - - - --- -- - - - -

Data available through the proprietary studies conducted by Media Audit provide zip code level
analysis of travelers in the New York MSA who have taken at least six domestic flights in the past
year, as well as travelers who describe themselves as primarily traveling for business.



This data does not provide airport-specific data, however it is clear from the catchment area studies

that the marketplace for Stewart Internationa l Ai rport should be separated out of the New Yo rk MSA

to tar•.et Dutchess, fir. nye, Putnam, and Westchester counties separatelo whenever yossib le. At a

minimum, available research for the Poughkeepsie, NY MSA will be reviewed upon refinement of

strateg y.

The overall market d efinition and profi le for business travelers or iginating in the New York MSA
reveals the likely target age, gender, and annual household income to use as a basis fo r targel
market definition.

r.

U" Aii jfwxdw^	 1,;
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Meanwhile, Newark's travel patterns reveal thai

the majority of Newark's customers are New

. ..	 ...... ... .

It is important to note that this broad definition without regard to travel frequency, income restriction

(HHI $100-250K), and driving requirement is already only 11.5% of the population.

With the narrowcasting to reach tho se travelers of utmost importance to the PANYNJ Airport

Parkint,"_Fa,,,*,,ilii^' - comes the.Cno 	 • gKOYI&f

number of sources. Subsets of Media Audit data prov ide insight into percentages of Primary

Business Travelers who own at least one vehicle among other things such as car make I model,

purchasing habits, and general location .

^=I

Based on the same FAA study, customers surveyed reported that if the availability of direct flights,

preferred destinations, and pricing were all equal, that the most important criteria for selecting an

airport is the traveler's proximity to the airport. Direct mail and geotargeted on-line campaigns wit",

be helpful in supporting broader market initiatives.



.... ........ ..

Jersey residents (71%) with Manhattan still providing 17% of travelers. Newark has the highest
concentration of business travelers at 37%. The New Jersey market represents a prime opportunity
for business messaging and reaching travelers who are car owners.



-to	 All

Data available from the U.S. Census Bureau (2006-2010 American Community Survey) on the

statewide level is indicative of this trend as represented in commuting ch oices. Of working res idents

age 16+:

0 79.1% of Connecticut commutes by car

T 76 .4% of Pennsylvania commutes by car

0 71. •% • New Jersey commutes by car

0 54.1% • New York State commutes by car

This information has great impact on the strategy and focus for the PANYNJ Airport Parking

Facilities advertising and marketing . Determining the level of car ownership of high frequency

travelers and their location is imperative to the success of outreach. While fewer residents of New

York it - Manhattan and borou , s commute or own cars the sheer numbers may riii^ '	a re t
A -, • 	 I	 • 	 I so-	 •	 •	 I I - I	

; - pii^^iiq ^	 I

ABM Parking Services proposes engaging the services of a New York-based market research firm

to conduct customer dialogs designed to find this core group and documen t their attitudes and

behaviors. Non-users with cars who do not drive and park represent one of the key opportunities fol

the PANYNJ Airport Parking Facilities. Enticing prospects who are qu al ified targets, but non-users,

to sam ple the produ ct is one of the key tactics to explore.

Focus Groups
Due to methodology approach, focus group studies provide an excellent opportunity to dialog with,

observe, and listen to members of key customer groups. Insights gained during these studies often

lead to inexpensive but successful product refinements that are market and customer driven.

ABM Parking Services recommends fielding an initial study concentrating on the PANYNJ Airports

primary custom er base, Newark Liberty International Airp o rt.



The insights gained in the initial Newark focus group
C

on-line technologies.

The statistically reliable quantitative study • the larger PANYNJ catchment area, segmented by
primary airport for each traveler, will be discussed in a later section.

Should the Authority be able to provide customer contact data (name and phone number) the costs
for recruitment will be greatly reduced. For purposes of the proposal, the advertising agency and
market research firm partner will develop pricing based on limited access to PANYNJ data.
Recruiting goals are recommended as follows:

• Travel out of EWR for business on a weekly basis, or
• Travel out of EWR for leisure on a monthly basis, and
• Age 25-54, and
• Own • have a long-term lease on a vehicle



This high frequency traveler will be difficult to recruit, not only because of the reticence of high-
income consumers to engage in market research studies, but also because their travel schedules
leave them with little time in any given week. The opportunity does exist, however, to engage those
customers who are passionate about travel (i.e. "Road Warriors") and who will seize the opportunity
to be involved in designing a product that is best suited to their needs.

That said, the chance remains that the study recruitment goals may require recruiting less frequent
travelers in order to properly seat each study session. The ad agency will work closely with the
client and market research firm to agree to acceptable recruitment goals. For example:

Travel out of EWR for business on a monthly basis, or
Travel out • EWR for leisure 4+/yr, and
Age 25-54, and
Own or have a long-term lease on a vehicle

- 1 he result will be a series of 12 focus group seatings of 6-10 participants in each. The findings will
provide the Authority, ABIVI Parking Services, and the marketing team with in-depth understanding
• the business and leisure traveler's motivations, behaviors, attitudes and experiential response
within each particular product group. It is critical to identify the key barriers to category entry and
potential entry motivations among those not active in the category.

All travelers who participate will do so mostly out of their investment and interest in being included
in decision-making for a product of importance to them. In fact, the client and its customer will both
reap the rewards • implementing new products and product improvements that bubble up from the
focus group experience.

Typical compensation for participation includes dinner before the evening begins as well as a small
incentive as a consideration. Some clients also provide a thank you gift which includes travel-



related products. For purposes of this proposal, the incentive is $125 for a 90-minute focus group.
Seven to ten team members from the Authority, ABM and the ad agency will be able to observe via
a two-way mirror.

SAMPLE COMPETITIVE ANALYSIS



The study can also provide a basis from which a statistically reliable quantitative study can be

developed and fielded across the PANYNJ Airports catchment area to further probe for those areas

revealed by the focus group which the Authority and agency feel warrant further exploration. The

results of the follow-up study can be tabulated and analyzed on an airport-by-airport basis and be

des igned as statistically reliable for each airpo rt.

Creative and decision-making that flows out of the customer di alogs will result in more relevant

tactics and position ing. Testing and probing for ideas from key customers combined with decision -

making and development based on solid research is an invaluable safeguard against hazarding any

missteps or operating under false assum pt ions.

Phase Two Quantitative Study

The second phase of recommended market studies is a follow-up quantitative survey conducted

on-line with frequent travelers with cars across the PANYNJ catchment area. The agency and

research firm also recommends using the phase two study to form a basel ine benchmark fU7

product awareness and usage segmentation.

I i I I i I i I I I I; ^ R I i F I I i I i HIT 19^^

Develop dashboard report on geographic and demographic profiles of PANYNJ's parking

customers and those of its competitors.

Mill-Z5 =4 , M'GM=

Provide a snapshot of market-place awareness and outreach effectiveness that can be

repeated annually as a valuable tool for evaluating not only advertising and marketing

development but customer attitudes toward the airport overall.

Statistic reliability provides the ability to look at data by product usage, travel frequency, or

any other num ber of criteria such as likelih ood to respond to certain positive or negative

stimuli. This last option can provide testing of initiatives in advance of product introductions.

At the conclusion of the quantitative on-line study, the agency and market research firm will create

a profile for each product group based on type of traveler, frequency of travel, demographic

segments, geography, etc. In the final analysis, the segmentation study will produce a custom er

profile as well as a product profile including:

•	 M.EMI=.

20^ =^
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.... . ......

• Demographics

• Motivations / keys to messaging/tone development

The quantitative study would further touch upon and form segmentation on which travelers use
which products at both on-airport and any of the 27 additional businesses which are either direct
competitors • provide options in lieu of the PANYNJ Airport Parking Facilities throughout the
catchment area. The presentation ►  findings will help the Authority identify any situations that might
weaken its market share and will further serve to solidify its positioning in a relevant manner.

A general target audience description has been provided to the market research firm in order to
provide a recommendation and price estimate. For the purposes of this proposal, the incidence of
qualification is low at 5% of the marketplace. Costs to complete a statistically representative
number of on-line surveys have been included in the cost section. The market research firm will fine
tune their approach and quote once a Non-Disclosure Agreement is in place.

11,1111110"1111

Creative Testing & Post Buy Awareness Studies
Participants in the focus group and on-line quantitative studies will be given the option to participate
in future web-based creative testing and post buy awareness studies. In this way, the Authority can
h

begin to develop a list of consumers interested in serving as a customer-based advisory panel.



After completing the Newark focus group, baseline awareness study and statistically reliable

quantitative study, the team will undergo a period of review and development designed to absorb

the new information, develop firm target market definition, and brainstorm on-target strategies for

client review an d approval. The ad agency will develop two to three basic concept tracks fo r client

review and begin testing with key customer groups.

In the Austin market, the ad agency was able to test creative concepts with high frequency

business travelers, allowing for the agency and client team to select and refine creative that

resonated with the key customer group. The creative testing also prov ided feedback on the

believability of claims, an d whether variat ions on messag ing wou ld seem relevant to frequent

business travelers.

Radi(	 Lenny & Sruce
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QUALIBUS CREATIVE TEST FEEDBACK

Based on the results of preliminary testing, the ad agency refined creative, including a switch in on-

air talent and gave the spot more local flavor resulting in a 455% increase in program enrollments

dur ing the advertising campaign , compared to the p rev ious year.

The on-line awareness study was made possible by capturing the e-mail addresses of top revenue-

producing members of the client's loyalty program. By asking members to opt-in, not only was

 tr	 ed re*u larl



Participants were also recruited for focus group studies with a high percentage strong ly invested in

provid ing product feedback.
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AN,
Number
	

23,051	 Haynes (Avistai) 1,700 Unknown	 Unknown	 n/a	 n1a
of Spaces
	

McClellan (Avistar)

-unknown

I=

U=

11^

WE=

#2 (SkyPark) - unknown

Valet
I 
Valet Open Air* Valet & Self Park: Valet & Self Park

Short Term Garage 'I Self Park Open Air— Open Air (Covered)
Short Term Lots *Not available at #2 (Uncovered)

Daily Garage —Not available at #McC

Daily Lots

Long Term Lot

Valet	 $40 Valet Open Air $ 18.95 Valet & Self Park Valet & Self Park
Short Term G & L $33 Self Park Open Air I	 Open Air Covered	 $11.00

Daily Garage	 $27 Haynes $13.95 j	 $11.00	 Uncovered $13.00
Daily Lots	 $24 #2 $12.95
Long Term Lot	 $18

Earn double miles thru Coupon for valet: Platinum Covered	 $10.99
6/1/12 with Thanks Haynes $16.60 Premier earns I Uncovered	 $9.99

Again McClellan $14.79 point for every with reservation
Coupon for self-park dollar thru 6/28112;

Haynes $12,15 weekly specials;
#2 $10.45 two week 10 0/. off

Restricted mobility Comped paper & water Drop off, detail- Car detailing,

Express Pay in g, text and concierge valet
EZPark Plus e-mail alerts, live_ , service at $25.00,

support app for iPhone and
Android

"Safe, secure, no hid- 'We have airport 

par,-

We 

P.,­
Fast, Reliable and

den fees, easy access ing covered," "Show us You rlv^ On Time, The Easi-
to terminals" your spots,' marquee est Way to Park at

event advertising, Newark Airport

Pick-up/Drop-off:	 Pick-up/Drop-off.

Shared Van	 Tax! Service

Private Car

Min Van (one way)	 Tax! (one way)

New Bruns. $113.00, New Bruns.

Private car (one way)	 $59-00
New Bruns. $85.00

Four can ride for the

price of one, earn

points on major air-

lines, $4 off coupon

iPhone & Blackberry,

app, stretch limos,

"We will be there ,No
for you...."

E

boarding pass ads

Parking No; Corp Yes Corp Yes

Yes, $5	 Yes

Thanks Again	 Spot Club

2.5 stars	 1.5 stars avg.
(before merger)

Yes 'Yes-Twitter Yes Yes

Yes I Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Corporate accounts No

4.5 stars 4.5 stars 2.5 stars 2 stars





Further analysis comparing PANYNJ On-Airport Parking's rates to the national marketplace is also
helpful in determining whether positioning and products are priced for success.

Hourly Daily
-Short Term Garage/Lots

$3.00 0 — 30min $33.00/day max
$6.00 30 — 1 hr
$3.00 each add'l Y2hr

- Daily Garage
$3.00 0 — 30min $27.00/day max
$6.00 30 — 1 hr
$3.00 each add'l Y2hr

- Daily Lots P9/P3
$3.00 0 — 30min $24.00/day max
$6.00 30 — 1 hr
$3.00 each add'l 1/2hr

-Long Term Lot
$6.00 each add] 8 hrs $18.00/day 1" 24 hrs

-Valet-Garage P4 $20.00 each add] 12 hrs $40.00/day

-Restricted Mobility Available in each parking lot near terminal entrance at P6 rate.

$6.00 each add] 8 hrs	 $18.00/day 1 st 24 hrs

-Restricted Mobility Available in each parking lot near terminal entrance at Long-Terra rate,

-Cell Phone Lot	 Complimentary



LaGuardia iro
Hourly	 Daily

-Short Term-Daily Garage P2 & Daily Lots P 9, 4, 5, 6, and 7
$3.00 0 ® 30in	 $33.00/day max
$6.00 30 ® 1 hr
$3.00 each ad'I '12 hr

-Long-Term/Economy Lot P3
$6.00 each add'I 6 hrs	 $33.00/day 15t 24 hrs
(after 48 hrs)	 $33.00/day 2nd 24 hrs

-Restricted Mobility Available in each parking lot near terminal entrance at Long-Term rate.
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I CeH Phone Lot	 Complimentary

Hourly Daily
-Short Term Hourly Lots

$2.00 1 —2 hrs $36.00/day max

$3.00 each add'l hour

-Short Term Daily Garage

$3.00/hr $16.00/day max
-Economy Lot

$3.00/hr $12.00/day max

-AIP Park N Ride

$3.00/hr $9.00/day max

-Reserved (Gold)

$3.00/hr $30.00/day max

-Reserved (Park-Ride)

$3.00/hr $12.00/day max

1^1 ^7 M" 5



-Ecopark Uncovered

$2.77 0 — 3 hrs	 $4.62/day max

-SurePark (Members)

$7.00 0 — 3 hrs	 $20.00/day max

$9.00 3 — 5 hrs

Hourly 29 ILI Y

-Garage

$3.00 0 — 1 hr $18.48/day max

$3.00 each add'i 30 min

-Close-In Uncovered

$3.00 0 — 1 hr $9.24/day max

$3.00 each add'i 30 min

-Economy Lots B — F

$3.00 0 — 1 hr $6.47/day max

$3.00 each add'i 30 min

-Valet $22.17/day max

-Cell Phone Lot	 Complimentary

2^^


